

Notice to Contractors,

PROPOSAL,

AGREEMENT, &

SPECIAL **P**ROVISIONS

FOR CONSTRUCTION ON Project No: 16-76 Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation

> IN STANISLAUS COUNTY, TURLOCK, CALIFORNIA.

Development Services Department/ Engineering Division

Phone: 209-668-6021 Contact Person: Randall Jones

Michael G. Pitcock, PE

Director of Development Services / City Engineer

Proposals shall be delivered to Turlock, California at or before 10:00 AM on Tuesday, June 13, 2017 at the office of the City Engineer, Development Services: Engineering Division 156 S. Broadway, Suite 150 Turlock, CA 95380



TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTICE	E TO CONTRACTORS	1
PROPOSA	AL	4
BIDDIN	G FORM	6
INFORM	MATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER	11
BIDDER	R'S BOND	13
AGREEM	ENT	15
1.	SCOPE OF WORK:	15
2.	THE CONTRACT:	15
3.	Schedule:	16
4.	EQUIPMENT & PERFORMANCE OF WORK:	16
5.	CONTRACT PRICE:	16
6.	TIME FOR PERFORMANCE:	16
7.	RIGHTS OF CITY TO INCREASE WORKING DAYS:	16
8.	Option Of City To Terminate Agreement In Event Of Failure To	
	COMPLETE WORK:	17
9.	DELAY DAMAGES:	17
10.	Performance By Sureties:	17
11.	DISPUTES PERTAINING TO PAYMENT FOR WORK:	17
12.	PERMITS, COMPLIANCE WITH LAW:	18
13.	SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR:	18
14.	INSPECTION BY CITY:	18
15.	EXTRA AND/OR ADDITIONAL WORK AND CHANGES:	18
16.	CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE:	18
17.	CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIME:	23
18.	INSPECTION AND TESTING OF MATERIALS:	23
19.	PERMITS AND CARE OF THE WORK:	23
20.	OTHER CONTRACTS:	24
21.	PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR:	24
22.	CONTRACT SECURITY:	24
23.	INDEMNIFICATION:	24
24.	CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE:	25
25.	PROOF OF CARRIAGE OF INSURANCE:	27
26.	WAGES & HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT:	27
27.	EMERGENCY - ADDITIONAL TIME FOR PERFORMANCE – PROCUREMENT	
	OF MATERIALS:	27
28.	PROVISIONS CUMULATIVE:	28
29.	TAXES:	28
30.	NOTICES:	29
32.	INTERPRETATION:	29
33.	ANTITRUST CLAIMS:	29

BOND I	FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE	32
BOND I	FOR LABOR AND MATERIAL	34
SPECIAL	PROVISIONS	36
SECTIO	N 1 SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS	36
1.01	SPECIFICATIONS:	36
1.02	CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY:	37
1.03	COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:	37
SECTIO	N 2 PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS	37
2.01	GENERAL:	
2.02	EXISTING UTILITIES, FACILITIES, AND SITE CONDITIONS:	38
SECTIO	N 3 AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT	38
3.01	GENERAL:	38
SECTIO	N 4 BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND DELAY	
	DAMAGES	
SECTIO		
5.01	LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION:	
5.02	PREVAILING WAGE:	
5.03	REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES:	
5.04	SUBCONTRACTING:	
5.05	PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS:	
5.06	PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS::	
5.07	PAYMENTS:	
5.08	GUARANTY:	
5.09	PUBLIC SAFETY:	
5.10	SOUND CONTROL REQUIREMENTS:	
5.11	WORKING HOURS:	
5.12	UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT REQUIREMENTS:	
5.13	DUST CONTROL:	
5.14	WATERING:	
5.15	USE OF HYDRANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES:	
5.16	PROGRESS SCHEDULE:	
5.17	PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY:	
5.18	ORDER OF WORK:	
5.19 5.20	AS-BUILTS:	
	SURVEYING:	
5.21 5.22	TESTING:	
5.22	SUBMITTALS: NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CLAIM:	
5.25 5.24	PRESERVATION OF EXISTING MONUMENTS:	
5.2 4 5.25	INTERNET BASED CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM:	
SECTIO		
SECTIO		
	N 7 (BLANK) N 8 MATERIALS	

8.01	MINOR CONCRETE:	50
SECTION	N 9 DESCRIPTION OF WORK	50
SECTION	10 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS	51
10.01	MOBILIZATION & DEMOBILIZATION	51
10.02	EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL	52
10.03	CONSTRUCTION PROJECT SIGN	52
10.04	TEMPORARY FENCING	52
10.05	PRESERVATION OF EXISTING MONUMENTS	52
10.06	REMOVE EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS	52
10.07	EARTHWORK AND GRADING	53
10.08	AGGREGATE BASE	53
	HOT MIX ASPHALT	
10.10	ADJUST FRAMES AND COVERS TO GRADE	54
10.11	CONNECTIONS TO AND TAPPING OF EXISTING MAINS	54
10.12	SANITARY SEWER PIPE	54
10.13	WATER MAIN PIPE	55
10.14	MINOR CONCRETE (SIDEWALK)	55
	MINOR CONCRETE (CURB AND GUTTER)	
10.16	MINOR CONCRETE (PLAYGROUND RETAINING WALL)	
10.17	MINOR CONCRETE (ACCESS RAMP)	
	ARBOR AND FOUNDATION	
	PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT	
10.20	WASTE RECEPTACLE WITH DRAIN & CITY LOGO	
10.21	CONTOUR BENCH WITH CITY LOGO	
	DOG BONE BENCH	
10.23	WATER FOUNTAIN WITH DRAIN & CITY LOGO	59
	BIKE RACK	
	CHARCOAL BARBECUE GRILL	
10.26	SERVING TABLE	61
	PICNIC TABLE	
10.28	PET STATION WITH WASTE RECEPTACLE	61
	PLAYGROUND ROCK DRAIN	
10.30	FINAL CLEANUP	62
SECTION		-
SECTION		
	Y:	-
12.01	PEDESTRIAN MANAGEMENT PLAN:	63
	TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN:	
SECTION		
SECTION		
14.01 I	ESCP WORKSHEET	63

CITY OF TURLOCK, CALIFORNIA NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

Sealed proposals will be received by the City Engineer of the City of Turlock, Development Services/Engineering Division, 156 S. Broadway, Suite 150, Turlock, California 95380, until 10:00 AM on Tuesday, June 13, 2017, for:

City Project No. 16-76

Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation

In accordance with and as described and provided in the plans, specifications and the proposed form of contract therefore, all of which are on file in the office of the City Engineer, and to which special reference is hereby made.

No verbal, telegraphic, electronic mail, facsimile, or telephone Proposals shall be considered.

Proposals are required to be complete and for the entire work, materials and improvements unless the contrary is indicated in the specifications.

In accordance with the provisions of California Business and professions Code, Section 7028, Contractor shall possess one of the following Contractor license(s) at the time of bid and for the duration of the contract:

1. A - General Engineering Contractor

Failure to possess the specified license(s) shall render the Bid as non-responsive, shall act as a bar to award of the contract to any Bidder not possessing said license(s) at the time of Bid opening and shall result in the forfeiture of the security of said Bidder. Furthermore, any Bidder or Contractor not so licensed shall be subject to all legal penalties imposed by law, including, but not limited to, any appropriate disciplinary action by the Contractor's License Board.

Each proposal must be accompanied by cash, cashier's check, or check certified by a responsible bank, or by a bid bond, the proposed form of which is on file in the office of the City Engineer of said City and to which special reference is hereby made in a sum not less than ten percent (10%) of the total amount bid, payable to the City of Turlock as liquidated damages in the case the bidder is awarded the contract and fails within ten (10) days after the date of mailing to him by the City Engineer of a notice of award of the contract and that the contract is ready for signature to execute the above-mentioned written contract and file with the City Engineer satisfactory insurance certificates as required by the terms of said contract and satisfactory bonds as required by law for the faithful performance of said contract and for the protection of material, men and laborers. Special reference is hereby made to Sections 5100, et. seq., of the Public Contracts Code of the State of California and to the proposed forms for said bonds now on file in the office of the said City Engineer for further particulars regarding bonds.

Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates in the county Stanislaus in which the work is to be done have been determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations. These wages are set forth in the General Prevailing Wage Rates for this project, available at 156 S. Broadway St, Turlock, CA 95380 and available from the California Department of Industrial Relations' Internet web site at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD.

Bidders' attention is directed to the insurance requirements in the contract. It is highly recommended that bidders confer with their respective insurance carriers or brokers to determine in advance of bid submission the availability of insurance certificates and endorsements prescribed and provided herein. If an apparent low bidder fails to comply strictly with the insurance requirements, that bidder may be disqualified from award of the contract.

No proposal will be considered unless made on forms furnished by the City Engineer of said City at his office of said City. Each proposal must be sealed, and the envelope containing the same must be addressed to the City Engineer of the City of Turlock and must be plainly marked. Each proposal shall clearly identify the bidders name and address on the sealed envelope.

Each bid shall separately state in figures the price offered for the approximate quantity of each item set forth and shall also state in words and figures the total contract price. Quantities set forth in the proposal form and in the specifications are approximate only, being given as a basis for comparison of bids, and the City of Turlock does not expressly or implied agree that the actual amount of work or materials will correspond therewith, but reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount of any class or portion of the work or materials as may be deemed necessary by the City Engineer.

Proposals may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) days after the time fixed for opening of proposals. The City Council of the City of Turlock reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or any part thereof and to waive any errors or informalities in any proposals and to set and act as sole judge of the merit and qualifications of the equipment, supplies or services offered.

At the request and expense of Contractor, pursuant to Division 2, Part 5, Section 22300, et. seq., of the Public Contracts Code, securities equivalent to any funds withheld as retention from progress payments made under this contract may be deposited with the City of Turlock or with a State or Federally chartered bank as escrow agent, who shall pay such moneys to Contractor upon completion of the contract.

Copies of the Contract Documents, including Instructions to Bidders, Bid Proposal forms, Plans and Specifications, may be downloaded from the engineering division's web site or purchased for a non-refundable fee of **Forty** dollars **(\$40)** at the Office of the City Engineer, 156 S. Broadway, Ste. 150, Turlock, CA 95380, Phone (209) 668-5520. For additional information, go to http://www.cityofturlock.org/capitalprojects

The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) provides a toll-free "hotline" service to report bid rigging activities. Bid rigging activities can be reported Mondays through Fridays, between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, Telephone No. 1-800-424-9071. Anyone with knowledge of possible bid rigging, bidder collusion, or other fraudulent activities should use the "hotline" to report these activities. The "hotline" is part of the DOT's continuing effort to identify and investigate highway

construction contract fraud and is operated under the direction of the DOT Inspector General. All information will be treated confidentially and caller anonymity will be respected.

No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5. No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public works unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5.

This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. The contractors and subcontractors must furnish electronic certified payroll records to the Labor Commissioner.

The contractor shall post job site notices prescribed by regulation. (*See* 8 Calif. Code Reg. §16451(d) for the notice that previously was required for projects monitored by the CMU.)

DATED: <u>**S**/17/17</u>

CITY OF TURLOCK

Ву: _____

Michael G. Pitcock, PE Development Services Director / City Engineer

Project No. 16-76

Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation

City of Turlock, California

DATED:_____

To: The Honorable City Council of the City of Turlock, California:

Bids are to be submitted for the entire work. The amount of the bid for comparison purposes will be the total of all items. The bidder shall set forth for each unit basis item of work a unit price and a total for the item, and for each lump sum item a total for the item, all in clearly legible figures in the respective spaces provided for that purpose.

In the case of unit basis items, the amount set forth under the "Item Total" column shall be the product of the unit price bid and the estimated quantity for the item. In case of discrepancy between the unit price and the total set forth for a unit basis item, the unit price shall prevail except as provided in (a) or (b), as follows:

(a) If the amount set forth as unit price is unreadable or otherwise unclear, or is omitted, or is the same as the amount as the entry in the item total column, then the amount set forth in the item total column for the item shall prevail and shall be divided by the estimated quantity for the item and the price thus obtained shall be the unit price;

(b) (Decimal Errors) If the product of the entered unit price and the estimated quantity is exactly off by a factor of ten, one hundred, etc., or one-tenth, or one-hundredth, etc. from the entered total, the discrepancy will be resolved by using the entered unit price or item total, whichever most closely approximates percentage wise the unit price or item total in the Department's Final Estimate of cost.

The Contractor shall submit the following at the time of Bid in order for the Bid to be considered responsive:

• Completed Proposal, pages 4 - 14;

In accordance with the annexed Notice to Contractors, the undersigned, as bidder, declares that he has carefully examined the location of the proposed work, the plans, specifications and technical requirements therefore, and the proposed forms of contract and bonds mentioned or referred to in said Notice and on file in the office of the City Engineer of the City of Turlock, together with the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft or type of workmen needed to execute said contract; and he proposes and agrees that if this proposal is accepted, he will furnish all labor, materials, equipment, plant transportation, service, sales taxes, permit fees and other costs necessary to complete the construction in strict conformity to the plans and specifications and he will enter into a written contract with the City of Turlock in the form of contract on file in the Office of the City Engineer for such purposes, and that he will execute and/or provide all bonds and insurance certificates required by law and/or by said contract and/or mentioned in said Notice to Contractors all in accordance with and subject to all applicable laws, and that he will take in full payment therefore the following unit prices, to wit:

BIDDER'S FORM

PROJECT TITLE: Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation PROJECT NUMBER: 16-76 OPENING DATE: Tuesday, June 13, 2017

OPENING TIME: 10:00 AM

Item	OPENING TIME:	Unit of	Estimated		
No.	Item Description	Measure	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
1	Mobilization and Demobilization	LS	1		
2	Earthwork and Grading	LS	1		
3	Removal of Existing Facilities	LS	1		
4	Project Sign	EA	1		
5	Erosion and Sediment Control Plan	LS	1		
6	Temporary Fencing	LS	1		
7	Domestic Water Line (1")	LF	105		
8	Connections to and Tapping to Existing Mains	EA	1		
9	Adjust Frames and Covers to Grade	EA	1		
10	Minor Concrete (Sidewalk)	SF	3,625		
11	Minor Concrete (Access Ramp)	EA	1		
12	Minor Concrete (Playground Retaining Wall)	LF	236		
13	Minor Concrete (Thickened Edge)	LF	475		
14	Arbor and Arbor Foundation	LS	1		
15	Safety Lighting	LS	1		
16	Drinking Fountain	EA	1		
17	Playground Equipment	LS	1		
18	Barbecue	EA	2		
19	Serving Table	EA	1		
20	Picnic Table	EA	4		
21	Contour Bench w/ City Logo	EA	4		
22	Dog Bone Bench	EA	3		
23	Waste Receptacle w/ City Logo	EA	8		
24	Bike Rack	EA	3		
25	Pet Station with Waste Basket	EA	1		
26	Playground Rock Drain	LS	1		

**The award of the contract will be based on the lowest base bid from a responsible bidder

TOTAL BASE BID WRITTEN IN FIGURES:

\$ ___, ____, ____, ____. ____

TOTAL BASE BID WRITTEN IN WORDS:

	Bid Alternate 1					
1	Sewer Line (4" PVC SDR-26)	LF	264			
2	Sewer Fitting (Cleanout)	EA	2			
3	Connection to Existing Sewer Main	EA	1			
4	Hot Mix Asphalt	LS	1			
5	Aggregate Base	LS	1			
6	Minor Concrete (Curb and Gutter)	LF	3			
7	Minor Concrete (Sidewalk)	SF	127			
8	Minor Concrete (24" Mow Strip)	LF	8			
	Bid Alternate 1 Subtotal					

BID ALTERNATE 1 WRITTEN IN FIGURES:

\$ ___, ___ , ___ , ___ . ___ . ___

BID ALTERNATE 1 WRITTEN IN WORDS:

Bid Alternate 2					
1	Drinking Fountain Rock Drain	LS	1		
	E				

BID ALTERNATE 2 WRITTEN IN FIGURES:

\$,										
----	---	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--

BID ALTERNATE 2 WRITTEN IN WORDS:

Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding documents and other related data identified in the Bidding Documents and the following Addenda, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged

-	ADDENDA		
No	Date	Signed	

CONTRACTOR:

COMPANY	S NAME:		
3Y:			
ADDRESS: _			
	(Number)	(St	reet)
	(City)	(State)	(ZIP)

NOTE: CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO LIST THEIR LICENSE NUMBER, EXPIRATION DATE, AND APPROPRIATE STATEMENT REGARDING PERJURY AND SIGNED BY INDIVIDUAL AUTHORIZED TO DO SO. FAILURE TO INCLUDE THE ABOVE ITEMS MAY CAUSE SAID CONTRACTOR'S BID TO BE REJECTED.

	, Contractor's License #	, Class
(Company's Name)		
Expires		
DIR #.		

This information is true, is provided as per Section 7028.15 of the Business and Professions Code, and is made herein under penalty of perjury.

Х

(Bidder's Signature)

(Date)

If the proposal is accepted and the undersigned shall fail to contract as aforesaid and fail to file with the City insurance certificates as required by said contract, within fourteen (14) days after the bidder has received notice from the City Engineer or his representative of the City of Turlock that the contract has been awarded to bidder and is ready for signature, the City of Turlock may, at its option, determine that the bidder has abandoned his contract, and thereupon this proposal and the acceptance thereof shall be null and void.

Also accompanying this proposal is an affidavit of non collusion and questionnaire to general contractors, a statement of proposed sub contractors, if any, the address of mill, shop or office of any sub contractor, and a statement of work to be performed by sub contractors.

The names and addresses of persons interested in the foregoing proposal as principals are as follows:

(**IMPORTANT NOTICE**: If bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state legal name of corporation, also names of the president, secretary, treasurer, and manager thereof; if a partnership, state true name of firm, also names of all individual co partners composing firm; if bidder or other interested person is an individual, state first and last name in full.)

Licensed in accordance	with an act providing for the registration of Contractors,			
License No.	Expiration Date			
	-			
DATED:	, 20			
Address:				
ות				
Phone:				
X				
	nature of Bidder			
518				

NOTE: If bidder is a corporation, the legal name of the corporation shall be set forth above together with the signature of the officers authorized to sign contracts on behalf of the corporation; if bidder is a co partnership, the true name of the firm shall be set forth above together with the signature of the partner or partners authorized to sign contracts in behalf of the co partnership; and, if bidder is an individual, his signature shall be placed above. If a signature is by an agent other than an officer of a corporation or a member of the partnership, a Power of Attorney must be on file with the City Clerk prior to opening or submitted with the bid; otherwise, the bid will be disregarded as irregular and unauthorized.

AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned bidder, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she are the party making the foregoing proposal or bid, that this bid is genuine and not collusive or sham, that said bidder has not colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other person or bidder, to put in a sham bid, or that said other person shall refrain from bidding, and has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure any advantage against the said City or any person interested in said improvement, for him/herself or any other person.

X	
Signature of Bidder	
0	
Jurat (Government Code Section 8202)	
State of California	
County of	
Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this	day of, 20
by proved to me on the l	nois of satisfactory oridonse to be the norson(a) who
appeared before me.	basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) who
appeared before me.	
	(AFFIX SEAL)
NOTARY PUBLIC SIGNATURE	
NOTARY PUBLIC PRINTED NAME	

INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER

The bidder is required to provide the following information. Additional sheets may be attached if necessary.

Contractor's mailing address:_____

Contractor's telephone number:

Number of years experience as a contractor in construction work or installation work similar to that required in these specifications:

Name of person who inspected the site of the proposed work for your firm:

Date of Inspection:_____

List at least four projects completed as of recent date:

Project No. and Title:	
Class and Type of Work:	
Name, Address, and Phone No. of Owner	
Registered Engineer in Charge of Project:	
Total Contract amount:	
Contract amount you performed:	
Name of Prime Contractor if you were Sub:	
Date Completed:	
Liquidated Damages Assessed:	
1 0	

Project No. and Title: Class and Type of Work: Name, Address, and Phone No. of Owner Registered Engineer in Charge of Project: Total Contract amount: Contract amount you performed: Name of Prime Contractor if you were Sub: Date Completed: Liquidated Damages Assessed:

Project No. and Title: Class and Type of Work: Name, Address, and Phone No. of Owner Registered Engineer in Charge of Project: Total Contract amount: Contract amount you performed: Name of Prime Contractor if you were Sub Date Completed: Liquidated Damages Assessed:

:_____

Project No. and Title: Class and Type of Work: Name, Address, and Phone No. of Owner Registered Engineer in Charge of Project: Total Contract amount: Contract amount you performed: Name of Prime Contractor if you were Sub Date Completed: Liquidated Damages Assessed:

BIDDER'S BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we ______BIDDER, and ______

SURETY a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of

and duly licensed to become sole Surety on bonds required and authorized by the State of California, as SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Turlock, hereinafter called the City, in the penal sum of TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF THE BID of the Bidder above named, submitted by said Bidder to the City, for the work described below, for the payment of which sum in lawful money of the United States, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. In no case shall the liability of the Surety hereunder exceed the sum_

Dollars (\$_____).

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, whereas the bidder has submitted the abovementioned bid to the City for certain construction specifically described as follows for which bids are to be opened at Engineering Division, Development Services Department, City Hall, 156 S. Broadway Suite 150, Turlock, California, on

_____, ____, 20____, at_____. (day) (date) (time) for **Project No. 16-76, "Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation."**

NOW, THEREFORE, if the aforesaid Bidder is awarded the contract and, within the time manner required under the specifications after the prescribed forms are presented to him for signature, enters into a written contract in the prescribed form in accordance with the bid, and files the two bonds with the City, one to guarantee faithful performance and the other to guarantee payment for labor and materials as required by law, then obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and virtue.

In the event suit is brought upon this bond by the Obligee and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay all costs incurred by the Obligee in such a suit, including a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court.

as

as

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals on this ______ day of ______, 201_.

BIDDER

(SEAL) (Bidder's Name and Corporate Seal)

(Signature)

(Print Name and Title)

(ATTACH ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF BIDDER)

SURETY

(SEAL) (Surety's Name and Corporate Seal)

(Signature)

(Print Name and Title)

(ATTACH ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SURETY'S ATTORNEY-IN-FACT)

NOTE: ATTACH CERTIFIED COPY OF POWER OF ATTORNEY

SUB-CONTRACTORS

City Project No. 16-76

Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation

Prime Contra	actor:		DIR NUMBER:	
Public Contra perform. Lis dollars (\$10,0	acts Code. Sub-contractors liste st all sub-contractors who will f 000), whichever is greater. Do	ed below must be proper furnish work in excess o not list alternate sub-con	ly licensed under the laws o f one-half (1/2) of one pero tractors for the same work.	ordance with Sections 4100 et. seq., inclusive, of the California f the State of California for the type of work which they are to cent (1%) of the prime contractor's total bid or ten thousand
IF NO SUBC	CONTRACTORS WILL FURNI	SH WORK, THEN WR	TE "NONE" BELOW IN T	HE SPACE PROVIDED.
NAME	LICENSE NUMBER	DIR NUMBER	ADDRESS	WORK ITEMS TO BE PERFORMED AND % OF ITEM

AGREEMENT

FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT

Project No. 16-76

Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the CITY OF TURLOCK, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter called "City," and ________ hereinafter called "Contractor" on this ______ day of ______, 20___ (hereinafter called the "Agreement").

RECITALS

A City has taken appropriate proceedings to authorize construction of the public work and improvements herein provided and execution of this contract.

B A notice was duly published for bids for the contract for the improvement hereinafter described.

C On ______, 20___, after notice duly given, the City Council of the City of Turlock awarded the contract for the construction of the improvements hereinafter described to Contractor, which Contractor said Council found to be the lowest responsible bidder for said improvements.

D City and Contractor desire to enter into this Agreement for the construction of said improvements.

IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. SCOPE OF WORK:

Contractor shall perform the work described briefly as follows:

The work consists, in general, of: earthwork and grading, install concrete, install arbor and foundation, install playground system, install park accessories including drinking fountain, barbecues, bicycle racks, benches and tables, waste receptacles, install water line, install security lighting, install dog pot, and furnishing all necessary labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals needed to perform the improvements as shown on the contract plans complete and in place. This work shall be completed in accordance with the Standard Specifications, standard Drawings and these Special Provisions.

The aforesaid improvements are further described in the plans, specifications and technical requirements for such project, copies of which are on file in the office of the City Engineer, and which are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth fully herein.

2. THE CONTRACT:

The complete contract consists of the following documents: This agreement, the notice to contractors, the contractor's accepted proposal, general conditions, special provisions, plans and detailed drawings, addendums, faithful performance bond, labor and materials bond, and any and all supplemental agreements amending, decreasing, or extending the work contemplated or which may be required to

complete the work in a substantial and acceptable manner. The current edition of the "City of Turlock Standard Specifications and Drawings" is hereby incorporated as a part of the contract.

All rights and obligations of City and Contractor are set forth and described in the contract.

All of the above named documents are intended to incorporate the terms of the others so that any work called for in one and not mentioned in the other, or vice versa, is to be executed the same as if mentioned in all said documents. The documents comprising the complete contract will hereinafter be referred to as the "contract". In case of any dispute, the decision of the City Engineer shall be final.

3. SCHEDULE:

All work shall be performed in accordance with the schedule approved by the City Engineer and under his direction.

4. EQUIPMENT & PERFORMANCE OF WORK:

Contractor shall furnish all tools, equipment, facilities, labor and materials necessary to perform and complete in good workmanlike manner the work of general construction as called for and in the manner designated in and in strict conformity with the plans and specifications for said work, which said specifications are entitled, "General Conditions and Special Provisions for **City Project No. 16-76**, **"Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation."**

The equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor and material shall be furnished, and said work performed and completed as required in said plans and specifications under the direction and supervision, and subject to the approval of the City Engineer of said City, or City Engineer's designated agent.

5. CONTRACT PRICE:

City shall pay, and Contractor shall accept in full payment for the work above agreed to be done, an amount not to exceed ______ and XX/100ths Dollars (\$______). Said amount shall be paid in installments as hereinafter provided.

6. TIME FOR PERFORMANCE:

The time fixed for the commencement of such work is within ten (10) working days after the "Notice to Proceed" has been issued. The work on this project, including all punch list items, shall be completed on or before the expiration of **thirty five (35)** working days beginning on the first day of work or no later than the tenth day after the "Notice to Proceed" has been issued.

7. **RIGHTS OF CITY TO INCREASE WORKING DAYS:**

If such work is not completed within such time, the City Engineer shall have the right to increase the number of working days in the amount the City Engineer may determine will best serve the interests of the City, and if the City Engineer desires to increase said number of working days, the City Engineer shall have the further right to charge the Contractor and deduct from the final payment for the work the actual cost of engineering, inspection, superintendence, and other overhead expenses which are directly chargeable to Contractor, and which accrue during the period of such extension, except that the cost of the final service and preparation of the final estimates shall not be included in such charges; provided, however, that no extension of time for completion of such work shall ever be allowed unless requested by Contractor at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the time herein fixed for the completion thereof, in writing, with the City Engineer. In this connection, it is understood that the City Engineer shall not consider any such requests if not filed within the time herein prescribed.

8. OPTION OF CITY TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT IN EVENT OF FAILURE TO COMPLETE WORK:

If Contractor shall have refused or failed to prosecute the work, or any severable part thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified or any extensions thereof, or shall have failed to complete said work within such time if Contractor should be adjudged a bankrupt, or if Contractor should make a general assignment for the benefit of Contractor's creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Contractor's insolvency, or if Contractor or any subcontractor should violate any of the provisions of this agreement, the City Engineer or the City Council may give written notice to Contractor and Contractor's sureties of its intention to terminate this agreement, and unless within five (5) days after the serving of such notice such violation shall cease and satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof made, this agreement may, at the option of City, upon the expiration of said time, cease and terminate.

9. DELAY DAMAGES:

In the event the Contractor, for any reason, shall have failed to perform the work herein specified to the satisfaction of the City Engineer within the time herein required, the City may, in accordance with Section 7203 of the Public Contract Code, in lieu of any other of its rights authorized by paragraph 8 of this agreement, deduct from payments or credits due Contractor after such breach, a sum equal to Seven Hundred Twenty Five and no/100ths Dollars (\$725.00) for each calendar day beyond the date herein provided for the completion of such work. This deduction shall not be considered a penalty but shall be considered as delay damages. The aforementioned rate of deduction is an amount agreed to by the Contractor and the City as reasonably representing additional construction engineering costs incurred by the City if the Contractor fails to complete the work within the contract time. However, any deduction assessed as delay damages shall not relieve the Contractor from liability for any damages or costs resulting from delays to other contractors on the project or other projects caused by a failure of the assessed Contractor to complete the work within the contract time. Due account shall be taken of any time extensions granted to the Contractor by the City. Permitting the Contractor to continue work beyond the contract completion date shall not operate as a waiver on the part of the City of any of its rights under the contract nor shall it relieve the Contractor from liability for any damages or costs resulting from delays to other contractors on the project or other projects caused by a failure of the assessed Contractor to complete the work within the contract time.

10. PERFORMANCE BY SURETIES:

In the event of any termination as hereinbefore provided, City shall immediately give written notice thereof to Contractor and Contractor's sureties, and the sureties shall have the right to take over and perform the agreement; provided, however, that if the sureties within five (5) days after giving them said notice of termination, do not give the City written notice of their intention to take over the performance of the agreement and do not commence performance thereof within five (5) days after notice to the City of such election, City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by contract or by any other method it may deem advisable for the account, and at the expense of Contractor and the sureties shall be liable to City for any excess cost or damages occasioned City thereby; and, in such event, City may, without liability for so doing, take possession of and utilize in completing the work such materials, appliances, plant and other property belonging to Contractor as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefor.

11. DISPUTES PERTAINING TO PAYMENT FOR WORK:

Should any dispute arise respecting the true value of any work done, of any work omitted, or of any extra work which Contractor may be required to do, or respecting the size of any payment to

Contractor during the performance of this contract, such dispute shall be decided by the City Engineer, and the decision of the latter shall be final and conclusive.

12. **PERMITS, COMPLIANCE WITH LAW:**

Contractor shall, at Contractor's expense, obtain all necessary permits and licenses for the construction of each improvement, give all necessary notices and pay all fees and taxes required by law, except those City fees set forth in the Special Provisions Section 1.

13. SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR:

Contractor shall give personal superintendence to the work on said improvement or have a competent foreman or superintendent satisfactory to the City Engineer on the work at all times during progress, with authority to act for him.

14. INSPECTION BY CITY:

Contractor shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City to all parts of the work and to the shops wherein the work is in preparation.

15. EXTRA AND/OR ADDITIONAL WORK AND CHANGES:

Should City at any time during the progress of said work request any alterations, deviations, additions, or omissions from said specifications or plans or other contract documents, it shall be at liberty to do so, and the same shall in no way affect or make void the contract, but will be added to or deducted from the amount of said contract price as the case may be, by fair and reasonable valuation. Request for such change must be made in writing signed by the City Engineer, shall be accompanied by plans and specifications for such purpose, shall be accepted in writing by Contractor and Contractor's surety.

In the event work is performed or materials furnished in addition to those set forth in Contractor's bid and the specifications herein, said work and materials shall be paid for at the unit price therein contained. Said amount shall be paid in installments as hereinafter provided.

16. CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE:

The contract price may only be changed by a contract change order. The value of any work covered by a contract change order for an adjustment in the contract price will be determined in the City's sole discretion as follows:

- (a) If the work performed is on the basis of unit prices contained in the contract documents, the change order will be determined in accordance with the provisions in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work", of the Caltrans Standard Specifications; or
- (b) If the work performed is not included on the engineers estimate associated with a unit price, the change order will be by a mutually agreed lump sum; or
- (c) If the change order is not determined as described above in either 16 (a) or 16 (b), the change order will be determined on the basis of force account in accordance with the provisions below.

FORCE ACCOUNT

For work paid by force account, the Engineer compares the City's records to the Contractor's daily force account work report. When the Engineer and the Contractor agree on the contents of the daily force account work reports, the Engineer accepts the report and the City pays for the work. If the

records differ, the City pays for the work based only on the information shown on the City's records.

If a subcontractor performs work at force account, accept an additional 2 percent markup to the total cost of that work paid at force account, including markups specified as below, as reimbursement for additional administrative costs.

The markups specified in labor, materials, and equipment includes compensation for all delay costs, overhead costs, and profit.

If an item's unit price is adjusted for work-character changes, the City excludes the Contractors cost of determining the adjustment.

Payment for owner-operated labor and equipment is made at the market-priced invoice submitted.

Labor

Labor payment is full compensation for the cost of labor used in the direct performance of the work plus a 5 percent markup. Force account labor payment consists of:

- 1. Employer payment to the worker for:
 - 1.1. Basic hourly wage
 - 1.2. Health and welfare
 - 1.3. Pension
 - 1.4. Vacation
 - 1.5. Training
 - 1.6. Other State and federal recognized fringe benefit payments
- 2. Labor surcharge percentage in *Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates* current during the work paid at force account for:
 - 2.1. Workers' compensation insurance
 - 2.2. Social security
 - 2.3. Medicare
 - 2.4. Federal unemployment insurance
 - 2.5. State unemployment insurance
 - 2.6. State training taxes
- 3. Subsistence and travel allowances paid to the workers
- 4. Employer payment to supervisors, if authorized

The 5 percent markup consists of payment for all overhead costs related to labor but not designated as costs of labor used in the direct performance of the work including:

- 1. Home office overhead
- 2. Field office overhead
- 3. Bond costs
- 4. Profit
- 5. Labor liability insurance
- 6. Other fixed or administrative costs that are not costs of labor used in the direct performance of the work

Materials

Material payment is full compensation for materials the Contractor furnishes and uses in the work. The Engineer determines the cost based on the material purchase price, including delivery charges, except:

- 1. A 5 percent markup is added
- 2. Supplier discounts are subtracted whether the Contractor takes them or not
- 3. If the Engineer believes the material purchase prices are excessive, the City pays the lowest current wholesale price for a similar material quantity
- 4. If the Contractor procured the materials from a source the Contractor wholly or partially own, the determined cost is based on the lower of the:
 - 4.1. Price paid by the purchaser for similar materials from that source on Contract items
 - 4.2. Current wholesale price for those materials
- 5. If the Contractor does not submit a material cost record within 30 days of billing, the determined cost is based on the lowest wholesale price:
 - 5.1. During that period
 - 5.2. In the quantities used

Equipment Rental

Equipment rental payment is full compensation for:

- 1. Rental equipment costs, including moving rental equipment to and from the change order work site using its own power.
- 2. Transport equipment costs for rental equipment that cannot be transported economically using its own power. No payment is made during transport for the transported equipment.
- 3. 5 percent markup.

If the Contractor wants to return the equipment to a location other than its original location, the payment to move the equipment must not exceed the cost of returning the equipment to its original location. If the Contractor uses the equipment for work other than work paid by force account, the transportation cost is included in the other work.

Before moving or loading the equipment, obtain authorization for the equipment rental's original location.

The Engineer determines rental costs:

- 1. Using rates in Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates:
 - 1.1. By classifying equipment using manufacturer's ratings and manufacturer-approved changes.
 - 1.2. Current during the work paid by force account.
 - 1.3. Regardless of equipment ownership; but the City uses the rental document rates or minimum rental cost terms if:
 - 1.3.1. Rented from equipment business the Contractor does not own.

1.3.2. The Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates hourly rate is \$10.00 per hour or less.

- 2. Using rates established by the Engineer for equipment not listed in *Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates*. The Contractor may submit cost information that helps the Engineer establish the rental rate; but the City uses the rental document rates or minimum rental cost terms if:
 - 2.1. Rented from equipment business the Contractor does not own.
 - 2.2. The Engineer establishes a rate of \$10.00 per hour or less.
- 3. Using rates for transport equipment not exceeding the hourly rates charged by established haulers.

Equipment rental rates include the cost of:

- 1. Fuel
- 2. Oil
- 3. Lubrication
- 4. Supplies
- 5. Small tools that are not consumed by use
- 6. Necessary attachments

- 7. Repairs and maintenance
- 8. Depreciation
- 9. Storage
- 10. Insurance
- 11. Incidentals

The City pays for small tools consumed by use. The Engineer determines payment for small tools consumed by use based on Contractor-submitted invoices.

The Engineer may authorize rates in excess of those in the Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates if:

- 1. The Contractor submits a request to use rented equipment
- 2. Equipment is not available from the Contractors normal sources or from one of the Contractors subcontractors
- 3. Rented equipment is from an independent rental company
- 4. Proposed equipment rental rate is reasonable
- 5. The Engineer authorizes the equipment source and the rental rate before the Contractor uses the equipment

Equipment on the Job Site

For equipment on the job site at the time required to perform work paid by force account, the time paid is the time:

- 1. To move the equipment to the location of work paid by force account plus an equal amount of time to move the equipment to another location on the job site when the work paid by force account is completed
- 2. To load and unload equipment
- 3. Equipment is operated to perform work paid by force account and:
 - 3.1. Hourly rates are paid in 1/2-hour increments
 - 3.2. Daily rates are paid in 1/2-day increments

Equipment Not On the Job Site Required for Original-Contract Work

For equipment not on the job site at the time required to perform work paid by force account and required for original-Contract work, the time paid is the time the equipment is operated to perform work paid by force account and the time to move the equipment to a location on the job site when the work paid by force account is completed.

The minimum total time paid is:

- 1. 1 day if daily rates are paid
- 2. 8 hours if hourly rates are paid

If daily rates are recorded, equipment:

- 1. Idled is paid as 1/2 day
- 2. Operated 4 hours or less is paid as 1/2 day
- 3. Operated 4 hours or more is paid as 1 day

If the minimum total time exceeds 8 hours and if hourly rates are listed, the City rounds up hours operated to the nearest 1/2-hour increment and pays based on the hours shown the following table. The table does not apply when equipment is not operated due to breakdowns, in which case rental hours are the hours the equipment was operated.

Equipment	itental fiours
Hours	Hours
operated	paid
0.0	4.00
0.5	4.25
1.0	4.50
1.5	4.75
2.0	5.00
2.5	5.25
3.0	5.50
3.5	5.75
4.0	6.00
4.5	6.25
5.0	6.50
5.5	6.75
6.0	7.00
6.5	7.25
7.0	7.5
7.5	7.75
≥8.0	hours
	used

Equipment Not On the Job Site Not Required for Original-Contract Work

For equipment not on the job site at the time required to perform work paid by force account and not required for original-Contract work, the time paid is the time:

- 1. To move the equipment to the location of work paid by force account plus an equal amount of time to return the equipment to its source when the work paid by force account is completed
- 2. To load and unload equipment
- 3. Equipment is operated to perform work paid by force account

Non-Owner-Operated Dump Truck Rental

Submit the rental rate for non-owner-operated dump truck rental. The Engineer determines the payment rate. Payment for non-owner-operated dump truck rental is for the cost of renting a dump truck, including its driver. For the purpose of markup payment only, the non-owner-operated dump truck is rental equipment and the owner is a subcontractor.

The above markups shall constitute full compensation for all home office overhead, field office overhead, bond costs, profit, labor liability insurance, and other fixed or administrative costs that are not costs specifically designated as cost or equipment rental as stated above. The total payment made as provided above shall be deemed to be the actual cost of the work and shall constitute full compensation therefor.

When extra work to be paid for on a force account basis is performed by a subcontractor, approved in conformance with the provisions in Section 5-1.13, "Subcontracting," an additional markup of 2 percent will be added to the total cost of that extra work including all markups specified in this Section. The additional 2 percent markup shall reimburse the Contractor for additional administrative costs, and no other additional payment will be made by reason of performance of the extra work by a subcontractor.

17. CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIME:

The contract time may only be changed by a contract change order. The value of any work covered by a contract change order for an adjustment in the contract time will be determined as follows:

- (a) Additional working days will be awarded where the amount of time is mutually agreed upon by Contractor and Engineer; or
- (b) Additional working days will be awarded where Contractor is prevented from completing any part of the work identified on the critical path and:
 - a. where the delay is caused by acts of public enemy, fire, floods, tsunamis, earthquakes, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, labor disputes, shortage of materials and freight embargos, provided that Contractor shall notify Engineer in writing of the causes of delay within 15 days from the beginning of that delay; or
 - b. where the delay is caused by actions beyond the control of Contractor; or
 - c. where the delay is caused by actions or failure to act by Engineer.

Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in contract time for delays within the control of Contractor. Delays resulting from and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed to be delays within the control of Contractor.

18. INSPECTION AND TESTING OF MATERIALS:

Contractor shall notify City a sufficient time in advance of the manufacture of production materials to be supplied by Contractor under this contract in order that City may arrange for mill or factory inspection and testing of same.

Any materials shipped by Contractor from factory prior to having satisfactorily passed such testing and inspection by City's representative or prior to the receipt of notice from such representative that such testing and inspection will not be required shall not be incorporated on the job of said improvement. Contractor shall also furnish City, in triplicate, certified copies of all factory and mill test reports upon request.

19. PERMITS AND CARE OF THE WORK:

Contractor has examined the site of the work and is familiar with its topography and condition, location of property lines, easements, building lines, and other physical factors and limitations affecting the performance of this agreement. Contractor, at Contractor's expense, shall obtain any permission necessary for any operations conducted off the property owned or controlled by City. Contractor shall be responsible for the proper care and protection of all materials delivered and work performed until completion and final acceptance.

20. OTHER CONTRACTS:

City may award other contracts for additional work, and Contractor shall fully cooperate with such other Contractors and carefully fit Contractor's own work to that provided under other contracts as may be directed by the City Engineer. Contractor shall not commit or permit any act which will interfere with the performance of work by any other Contractor.

21. PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR:

Payments are to be made to the Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Section 9 of the General Conditions of said specifications in legally executed and regularly issued warrants of the city, drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as required by law and order of the City Council thereof. The Contractor shall be administered a progress payment approximately every 30 calendar days from the time work begins according to the payment schedule furnished by the City Engineer at the time work begins.

Pursuant to Division 2, Part 5, Section 22300, *et seq.*, of the Public Contracts Code, the Contractor may request the right to substitute securities for any moneys withheld by the City of Turlock to ensure the performance required of the Contractor under the contract, or that the City of Turlock make payment of retentions earned directly into an escrow account established at the expense of the Contractor.

22. CONTRACT SECURITY:

Concurrently with the execution hereof, Contractor shall furnish on the forms provided (1) a surety bond in an amount equal to at least one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the faithful performance of this contract; and (2) a separate surety bond in an amount equal to at least one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price as security for the payment of all persons performing labor and furnishing materials in connection with this contract. Sureties on each of said bonds thereof shall be satisfactory to the City.

23. INDEMNIFICATION:

Indemnity for Professional Liability: When the law establishes a professional standard of care for Contractor's Services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless City and any and all of its elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses, including legal counsel's fees and costs but only to the extent the Contractor (and its Subcontractors) are responsible for such damages, liabilities and costs on a comparative basis of fault between the Contractor (and its Subcontractors) and the City in the performance of professional services under this Agreement. Contractor shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify City for the City's own negligence or for the negligence of others.

Indemnity for other than Professional Liability: Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City and any and all of its elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers from and against any liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including legal counsel's fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by Contractor or by any individual or agency for which Contractor is legally liable, including, but not limited to, officers, agents,

employees, or subcontractors of Contractor.

24. CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE:

Contractor shall not commence work under this Agreement until Contractor has obtained City's approval regarding all insurance requirements, forms, endorsements, amounts, and carrier ratings, nor shall Contractor allow any subcontractor to commence work on a subcontract until all similar insurance required of the subcontractor shall have been so obtained and approved. Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may constitute a material breach of contract.

(a) <u>Minimum Scope of Insurance</u>: Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 00 01) with additional insured endorsements (form CG 20 10 for ongoing operations and CG 20 37 for products/completed operations), to be approved by the City of Turlock.

(2) Insurance Services Office Form CA 00 01 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).

(3) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer's Liability Insurance.

- (4) Surety bonds as described below.
- (5) Errors and Omissions/Professional Liability Insurance (if *Design/Build*).

(b) <u>Minimum Limits of Insurance</u>: Contractor shall maintain limits no less than:

(1) General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations): \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

(2) Automobile Liability: \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.

(3) Workers' Compensation: As statutorily required by the State of California.

(4) Employer's Liability: \$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(5) Builder's Risk:

(6) Errors and Omissions/Professional Liability: \$1,000,000 per claim as needed for design/build.

- (c) <u>Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions</u>: Upon request of City, any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At the option of City, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers; or (2) Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.
- (d) <u>Other Insurance Provisions</u>: The commercial general liability policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

(1) City, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations, which coverage shall be maintained in effect for at least three (3) years following the completion of the work specified in the contract. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to Contractor's insurance (at least as broad as CG 20 10 for ongoing operations and CG 20 37 for products/completed operations), or as a separate Owners and Contractors Protective Liability policy providing both ongoing operations and completed operations coverage.

(2) For any claims related to this project, Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects City and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

(3) In the event of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change that reduces or restricts the insurance coverage afforded to City under this Agreement, the insurer, broker/producer, or Contractor shall provide City with thirty (30) days' prior written notice of such cancellation, non-renewal, or material change.

(4) Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of the additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code.

- (e) <u>Acceptability of Insurers</u>: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII or with an insurer to which the City has provided prior approval.
- (f) <u>Verification of Coverage</u>: Consultant shall furnish City with original certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by City before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive Contractor's obligation to provide them. City reserves the right, at any time, to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.
- (g) <u>Waiver of Subrogation</u>: With the exception of professional liability, Contractor hereby agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. The commercial general liability policy and workers' compensation policy shall be endorsed to contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of City for all work

performed by Contractor, its agents, employees, independent contractors and subcontractors. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation.

- (h) <u>Subcontractors</u>: Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.
- (i) <u>Surety Bonds</u>: Contractor shall provide a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond.

25. **PROOF OF CARRIAGE OF INSURANCE:**

Contractor shall furnish City concurrently with the execution hereof, satisfactory proof of carriage of the insurance required, and that Contractor shall give City at least sixty (60) days prior notice of the cancellation of any policy during the effective period of this contract.

26. WAGES & HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT:

In the performance of this contract, eight (8) hours shall be the maximum hours of labor on any calendar day, and the minimum wages of compensation of persons performing labor in the execution of this agreement shall be the current prevailing scale of wages determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations for the community.

The Contractor shall forfeit as penalty to the City, Twenty-five and no/100ths Dollars (\$25.00) to be paid to the City of Turlock for each workman employed in the execution of this agreement by him or by any subcontractor, for each calendar day during which any workman is required or permitted to labor more than eight (8) hours, in violation of provisions of Article 3, Chapter 1, Part 7, a Division 2, of the Labor Code of the State of California, and all amendments thereto.

27. EMERGENCY - ADDITIONAL TIME FOR PERFORMANCE - PROCUREMENT OF MATERIALS:

If, because of war or other declared national emergency, the Federal or State Government restricts, regulates, or controls the procurement and allocation of labor or materials, or both, and if solely because of said restrictions, regulations or controls, Contractor is through no fault of the Contractor, unable to perform this agreement, or the work is thereby suspended or delayed, any of the following steps may be taken.

(a) City may, pursuant to resolution of the Council, grant Contractor additional time for the performance of this agreement, sufficient to compensate in time, for delay or suspension.

To qualify for such extension in time, Contractor within ten (10) days of Contractor's discovering such inability to perform, shall notify City Engineer in writing thereof, and give specific reasons therefore; City Engineer shall thereupon have sixty (60) days within which to procure such needed materials or labor as is specified in this agreement, or permit substitution, or provide for changes in the work in accordance with other provisions of this agreement.

Substituted materials, or changes in the work, or both, shall be ordered in writing by City Engineer, and the concurrence of the Council shall not be necessary. All reasonable expenses of such procurement incurred by the City Engineer shall be defrayed by the Contractor; or

(b) If such materials or labor cannot be procured through legitimate channels within sixty (60) days

after the filing of the aforesaid notice, either party may, upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the other, terminate this agreement. In such event, Contractor shall be compensated for all work executed upon a unit basis in proportion to the amount of the work completed, or upon a cost-plus-ten-percent (10%) basis, whichever is the lesser. Materials on the ground, in process of fabrication or in route upon the date of notice of termination specially ordered for the project and which cannot be utilized by Contractor, shall be compensated for by City at cost, including freight, provided the Contractor shall take all steps possible to minimize this obligation; or

(c) City Council, by resolution, may suspend this agreement until the cause of inability to perform is removed but for a period of not to exceed sixty (60) days.

If this agreement is not canceled, and the inability of Contractor to perform continues without fault on Contractor's part, beyond the time during which the agreement may have been suspended, as herein above provided, City Council may further suspend this agreement, or either party hereto may, without incurring any liability, elect to declare this agreement terminated upon the ground of impossibility of performance. In the event City declares this agreement terminated, such declaration shall be authorized by the City Council by resolution, and Contractor shall be notified in writing thereof within five (5) days after the adoption of such resolution. Upon such termination, Contractor shall be entitled to proportionate compensation at the agreement rate for such portion of the agreement as may have been performed, or

(d) City may terminate this agreement, in which case Contractor shall be entitled to proportionate compensation at the agreed rate for such portion of the agreement as may have been performed. Such termination shall be authorized by resolution of the Council. Notice thereof shall be forthwith given in writing to Contractor, and this agreement shall be terminated upon receipt by Contractor of such notice.

In the event of the termination provided in this sub-paragraph (d), none of the covenants, conditions or provisions hereof shall apply to the work not performed, and City shall be liable to Contractor for the proportionate compensation last herein mentioned.

28. **PROVISIONS CUMULATIVE:**

The provisions of this agreement are cumulative, and in addition to and not in limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to City.

29. TAXES:

Contractor shall cooperate with City to the full extent possible to maximize the local allocation of California sales and use tax to the City. Such cooperation shall include but not be limited to:

(a) Use Tax Direct Payment Permits. Contractor shall apply for, obtain and utilize, to the maximum extent reasonable, a California Use Tax Direct Payment Permit.

(b) Purchases of \$500,000 or More. Contractor shall require vendors and suppliers located outside California from whom Contractor makes purchase of \$500,000 or more to allocate the use tax to the City.

Additional information regarding use tax and the Permit can be found in the State of California Board of Equalization, Sales and Use Tax Regulations, Regulation 1699.6, Use Tax Direct Payment Permits, or on the web site for the Board of Equalization at http://www.boe.ca.gov/sutax/sutprograms.htm

30. NOTICES:

All notices shall be in writing and delivered in person or transmitted by certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:

City of Turlock City Engineer 156 S. Broadway, Suite 150 Turlock, CA 95380-5454

Notices required to be given to Contractor shall be addressed as follows:

Notices required to be given sureties of Contractor shall be addressed as follows:

31. CITY CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR:

The City's contract administrator and contact person for this Agreement is:

Randall Jones Development Services Department, Engineering Division 156 S. Broadway, Suite 150 Turlock, California 95380-5456 Telephone: (209) 668-6021 E-mail: Rjones@turlock.ca.us

32. INTERPRETATION:

As used herein, any gender includes each other gender, the singular includes the plural and vice versa.

33. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:

The Contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the City all rights, title and interest to any causes of action under Section Four of the Clayton Act and the Cartwright Act concerning antitrust claims.

34. Use of City Project Number:

The Contractor or subcontractor agrees to use the aforementioned City project number on all maps,

drawings, submittals, billing, and written correspondence that involve City staff or contracted consultants. Nothing in this section shall preclude the Contractor or subcontractor from using their own project numbers for their own internal use.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three identical counterparts of this agreement, consisting of a total of 21 pages, each of which counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed an original of said agreement, have been duly executed by the parties hereinabove named, on the day and year first herein above written.

CONTRACTOR

CITY OF TURLOCK, a municipal corporation

By:			
Gary Soiseth, Mayor			
OT			
Com D. However, City Many and			
, i , e			
Date:			
APPROVED AS TO SUFFICIENCY:			
urity No: Michael G. Pitcock, P.E., Developm Services Director / City Engineer	nent		
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	APPROVED AS TO FORM:		
By:			
Phaedra A. Norton, City Attorney			
ATTEST:			
By:			
Jennifer Land, City Clerk			
Gary R. Hampton, City Manager Gary R. Hampton, City Manager Date: APPROVED AS TO SUFFICIENCY: By: By: Michael G. Pitcock, P.E., Developm Services Director / City Engineer APPROVED AS TO FORM: By: Phaedra A. Norton, City Attorney re ATTEST:	mer		

BOND FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS:

That		, as Principal, and
		, incorporated under the laws of the State
of	, and author	rized to execute bonds and undertakings as sole Surety, in the State
of California, and he	ld and firmly boun	d unto the City of Turlock, a municipal corporation of the State of
California, in t	the sum of	Dollars
(\$) for the payme	nt thereof, well and truly to be made, said Principal and Surety bind
themselves, their adr	ninistrators, succes	ssors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

The condition of the foregoing obligation is such that: Whereas the above bounden Principal has entered, or is about to enter, into a certain contract with the City of Turlock, entitled "Agreement for **City Project No. 16-76, "Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation,"** a true and correct copy of which agreement is presently on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Turlock, which said agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, if the above bounden Principal shall well and truly perform the work contracted to be performed under said contract, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

No prepayment or delay in payment and no changes, extension, addition or alteration of any provision of said contract or in any plans and specifications referred to herein, and no forbearance on the part of the City shall operate to release the Surety from liability on this Bond, and consent to make such alterations without further notice to or consent by the Surety is hereby given, and the Surety hereby waives the provisions of Section 2819 of the Civil Code of the State of California.

///

/// /// ///

///

Dated this	day of	, 20
(Principal)		
By: X		
By: X		
(Surety)		
By: X		
Address:		
(Zip) Phone:		
	(Attach Acknov Both Principal's	e
	Attorney In Fac	
///		
///		
///		
///		
///		
///		
///		
///		

BOND FOR LABOR AND MATERIAL

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS:

That	, as Principal, and
	, incorporated under the laws of the
State of	and authorized to execute bonds and undertakings as sole Surety, in
the State of California, as Surety,	are held and firmly bound unto any and all material, men, persons,
companies or corporations furnish	ng materials, provisions, provender or other supplies used in, upon, for
or about the performance of the	e work contracted to be executed or performed under the contract
hereinafter mentioned, and all per	sons, companies or corporations renting or hiring teams, or implements
or machinery, for or contributing t	o said work to be done, and all persons who perform work or labor upon
the same, and all persons who sup	ply both work and materials, and whose claim has not been paid by the
Contractor, company, o	r corporations in the just and full sum
of	Dollars
(\$) for pa	yment thereof, well and truly to be made, said Principal and Surety bind
themselves, their administrators, s	uccessors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

The condition of the foregoing obligation is such that: Whereas the above bounden Principal has entered, or is about to enter, into a certain contract with the City of Turlock, entitled "Agreement for **City Project No. 16-76, "Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation,"** a true and correct copy of which agreement is presently on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Turlock, which said agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, if the above bounden Principal or said Principal's subcontractors, fail to pay for any materials, provisions provender or other supplies, or teams, used in, upon, for, or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with respect to such work or labor, the Surety will pay for the same, in an amount not exceeding the sum specified in this bond, provided that any and all claims hereunder shall be filled and proceedings had in connection therewith as required by the provisions of Sections 5100, et. seq., inclusive, of the Public Contracts Code of the State of California, and any amendments thereof; provided, also, that in case suit is brought upon this bond, a reasonable attorney's fee shall be awarded by the court to the prevailing party in said suit, said attorney's fee to be fixed as costs in said suit, and to be included in the judgment therein rendered.

No prepayment or delay in payment and no change, extension, addition, or alteration of any provision of said contract or in said plans and specifications agreed to between the Principal and the City, and no forbearance on the part of the City, shall operate to release the Surety from liability on this bond, and consent to make such alterations without further notice to or consent by the Surety is hereby given, and the Surety hereby waives the provisions of Section 2819 of the Civil Code of the State of California.

Dated this	day of	_, 20
(Principal)		
By: X		
By: X		
(Surety)		
By: X		
By: X		
Address:		
(Zip) Phone:		
	(Attach Acknowledgment Both Principal's and Surety's Attorney In Fact)	
///		
///		
///		
///		
///		

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

City Project No: 16-76 Swanson Centennial Park Playground Installation

SECTION 1 SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS

SPECIAL NOTES:

1. Official bid documents including plans and specifications are available online at http://www.cityofturlock.org/capitalprojects. All bids submitted for this project must conform to the requirements of the official bid documents, including plans and specifications.

1.01 SPECIFICATIONS:

The work described herein shall be done in accordance with the current City of Turlock Standard Specifications and the 2010 Edition of the State of California, Department of Transportation Standard Specifications and Standard Plans (with exception that English units are to be used in place of metric) and in accordance with the following Special Provisions.

The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one is as binding as if required by all.

It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any labor, documentation, services, materials, or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents or from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to produce the intended result will be provided whether or not specifically called for at no additional cost to City.

Clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents shall be issued by Engineer.

In case of conflict or discrepancy between any of the Contract Documents, the order of documents listed below shall be the order of precedence, with the first item listed having the highest precedence.

- 1. Contract Change Order (Modifications or changes last in time are first in precedence).
- 2. Addenda to Contract Agreement
- 3. Contract Agreement
- 4. Permits
- 5. Special Provisions
- 6. Notice Inviting Bids and Instructions to Bidders
- 7. Project Drawings
- 8. City of Turlock Standard Specifications
- 9. Caltrans Standard Specifications
- 10. City of Turlock Standard Drawings
- 11. Caltrans Standard Plans

With regards to discrepancies or conflicts between written dimensions given on drawings and the scaled measurements, the written dimensions shall govern.

With regards to discrepancies or conflicts between large-scale drawings and small-scale drawings, the larger scale shall govern.

With regards to discrepancies or conflicts between detailed drawings and referenced standard drawings or plans, the detailed drawings shall govern.

In the event where provisions of codes, safety orders, contract documents, referenced manufacturer's specifications or industry standards are in conflict, the more restrictive and higher quality shall govern.

Should it appear that the work to be done or any of the matters relative thereto are not sufficiently detailed or explained in these specifications, the special provisions, or the plans, the Contractor shall apply to the Engineer in writing for such further explanations as may be necessary and shall conform to them as part of the contract. All responses from the Engineer shall also be in writing. In the event of any doubt or question arising respecting the true meaning of these specifications, the special provisions or the plans, reference shall be made to the Engineer, whose decision thereon shall be final.

1.02 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY:

The Contractor shall examine carefully the site of the work and the plans and specifications therefore. The Contractor shall investigate to their satisfaction as to conditions to be encountered, the character, quality and quantity of surface, subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered, the work to be performed, materials to be furnished, and as to the requirements of the bid, plans and specifications of the contract.

1.03 COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:

Pursuant to the California Public Contract Code, the bidder is required to review architectural or engineering plans and specifications prior to submission of a bid, and report any errors and omissions noted by Contractor to the architect, engineer or owner five days prior to the bid opening date.

SECTION 2 PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

2.01 GENERAL:

The Contractor's attention is directed to the "Notice to Contractor" for the date, time and location of the mandatory Pre-Bid meeting, if applicable.

The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Proposal for this bid for the requirements and conditions which the bidder must observe in the preparation of and the submission of the bid.

The bidder's bond shall conform to the bond form in the Bid book for the project and shall be properly filled out and executed. The bidder's bond form included in that book must be used.

In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 7106, a Noncollusion Affidavit is included in the Bid book. Signing the Bid book shall also constitute signature of the Noncollusion Affidavit.

The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of Title 49 CFR (Code of Federal Regulations) part 26 in the award and administration of US DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate. Each subcontract signed by the bidder must include this assurance.

Failure of the bidder to fulfill the requirements of the Special Provisions for submittals required to be furnished after bid opening, including but not limited to escrowed bid documents, where applicable, may subject the

bidder to a determination of the bidder's responsibility in the event it is the apparent low bidder on a future public works contracts.

2.02 EXISTING UTILITIES, FACILITIES, AND SITE CONDITIONS:

The actual sizes, locations and materials of existing utilities and facilities shown on the plans may vary from what is shown on the plans. Attention is directed to the possible existence of underground facilities not indicated on the plans or in the special provisions. Contractor shall be responsible for verifying the locations and nature of the existing utilities, protecting them from damage and notifying Engineer of their location and nature.

Contractor shall examine carefully the site of the work. It is assumed that Contractor has investigated and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered as to the character, quality and quantities of work to be performed.

Although the City of Turlock's soil conditions are homogenous and sandy in nature, various subsurface conditions such as hardpan, and ground water may be encountered. The City of Turlock will not be held responsible in any way for the type and character of subsurface conditions encountered. If a subsurface report is desired by Contractor, it will be Contractor's responsibility and expense to verify the subsurface conditions by boring or other means necessary prior to bidding and/or performing work. Attention is directed to Section 5.17, "Preservation of Property," of these special provisions during boring and other miscellaneous operations.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment (including dewatering devices), and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved with and/or in verifying existing utilities, facilities, site and subsurface conditions as specified above, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore

SECTION 3 AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT

3.01 GENERAL:

The Contractor's attention is directed to the provisions in the Contract for the requirements and conditions concerning award and execution of contract.

The contract shall be executed by the successful bidder and shall be returned, together with the contract bonds and insurance, to the City so that it is received within 10 working days after the bidder has received the contract for execution. Failure to do so shall be just cause for forfeiture of the proposal guaranty. The executed contract documents shall be delivered to the following address:

Attention: Yolanda Gardini City of Turlock, Engineering Division 156 S Broadway, Suite 150 Turlock, CA 95380

Bid protests are due in writing by the fifth calendar day after the bid opening and are to be delivered to the following address:

Randall Jones, Assistant Engineer 156 S Broadway Suite 150 Turlock, CA 95380 The award of the contract, if it be awarded, will be to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid complies with all the requirements prescribed.

SECTION 4 BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND DELAY DAMAGES

Attention is directed to Section 6 "Time For Performance" of the Contract.

At no time shall construction begin prior to the issuance of the Notice to Proceed. Any work performed prior to the Notice to Proceed shall be done at the Contractor's own risk and payment will not be made therefor.

The Contractor shall follow the sequence of construction and progress of work as specified in Section 5.18, "Order of Work," of these Special Provisions.

Should the Contractor choose to work on a Saturday, Sunday or Legal Holiday as defined in Section 5.11 "Working Hours," of these Special Provisions, the Contractor shall reimburse the City of Turlock the actual cost of engineering, inspection, testing, superintendent, and/or other overhead expenses which are directly chargeable to the contract. Should such work be undertaken at the request of the City, reimbursement will not be required.

Attention is directed to Section 9 "Delay Damages" of the Contract.

A pre-construction meeting will be held between Contractor and City prior to the beginning of construction. The exact time and place of this conference will be determined by City after award of the construction contract.

City shall furnish to Contractor five hard copies of the Contract Documents and plans. Contractor may produce additional copies as needed at Contractor's expense.

SECTION 5 GENERAL

5.01 LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION:

Attention is directed to the following Notice that is required by Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2, California Code of Regulations.

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR NONDISCRIMINATION PROGRAM (GOV. CODE, SECTION 12990)

Your attention is called to the "Nondiscrimination Clause", set forth in Section 7 1.01A(4), "Labor Nondiscrimination," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications, which is applicable to all nonexempt state contracts and subcontracts, and to the "Standard California Nondiscrimination Construction Contract Specifications" set forth therein. The Specifications are applicable to all nonexempt state construction contracts and subcontracts of \$5,000 or more.

5.02 **PREVAILING WAGE:**

Attention is directed to Section 7-1.02K "Labor Code," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.

Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates in the county Stanislaus in which the work is to be done have been determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations. These wages are set forth in the General Prevailing Wage Rates for this project, available at 156 S.

Broadway St, Turlock, CA 95380 and available from the California Department of Industrial Relations' Internet web site at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD.

5.03 REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES:

When the presence of asbestos or hazardous substances are not shown on the plans or indicated in the specifications and the Contractor encounters materials which the Contractor reasonably believes to be asbestos or a hazardous substance as defined in Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, and the asbestos or hazardous substance has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor may continue work in unaffected areas reasonably believed to be safe. The Contractor shall immediately cease work in the affected area and report the condition to the Engineer in writing.

In conformance with Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, removal of asbestos or hazardous substances including exploratory work to identify and determine the extent of the asbestos or hazardous substance will be performed by separate contract.

If delay of work in the area delays the current controlling operation, the delay will be considered a right of way delay and the Contractor will be compensated for the delay in conformance with the provisions in Section 8 1.07, "Delays," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.

5.04 SUBCONTRACTING:

No subcontract releases the Contractor from the contract or relieves the Contractor of their responsibility for a subcontractor's work.

If the Contractor violates Pub Cont Code § 4100 et seq., the City may exercise the remedies provided under Pub Cont Code § 4110. The City may refer the violation to the Contractors State License Board as provided under Pub Cont Code § 4111.

Each subcontract must comply with the contract.

Each subcontractor must have an active and valid State contractor's license with a classification appropriate for the work to be performed (Bus & Prof Code, § 7000 et seq.).

At the pre-construction meeting, prior to starting work, Contractor shall submit a complete listing of subcontractors and the value of the work each subcontractor will perform. This list shall contain all information identified on Exhibit 12-G of the Local Assistance Procedures Manuel.

Before subcontracted work starts, submit a Subcontracting Request form.

Do not use a debarred contractor; a current list of debarred contractors is available at the Department of Industrial Relations' Web site.

Upon request by the Engineer, immediately remove and not again use a subcontractor who fails to prosecute the work satisfactorily.

5.05 PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS:

A prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay any subcontractor not later than 10 days of receipt of each progress payment in accordance with the provision in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code concerning prompt payment to subcontractors. The 10 days is applicable unless a longer period is agreed

to in writing. Any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of Section 7108.5 shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanction and other remedies of that section. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

5.06 PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS::

The agency shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the agency, of the contract work, and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these acceptances. The prime contractor, or subcontractor, shall return all monies withheld in retention from a subcontractor within 30 days after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work by the agency. Federal law (49CFR26.29) requires that any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of this provision shall subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the Business and Professions Code. These requirements shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime contractor or subcontractor payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

5.07 PAYMENTS:

Attention is directed to Section 19, "Payments to Contractor," of the Contract.

At the end of each month the Contractor shall submit a proposed progress invoice. The invoice shall delineate each bid item, the amount of work performed for the invoice period (previous month) and the total amount of work performed to date. A sample invoice with all of the required items will be given to the Contractor at the pre-construction meeting.

The Engineer will review the progress invoice and after any changes the Engineer makes, will issue an official invoice for the Contractor to sign. The Contractor shall sign the official invoice and return to the Engineer. After the Engineer receives the signed, official invoice, the progress payment will be processed.

Retention in the amount of 5% of the progress payment amount shall be held from all progress payments. Retention will be released 35 days after the Notice of Completion has been filed, insofar as no stop notices were filed.

5.08 GUARANTY:

Attention is directed to Section 9-4, "Guaranty," of the City of Turlock Standard Specifications.

5.09 PUBLIC SAFETY:

In addition to any other measures taken by Contractor pursuant to the provisions of the Standard Specifications and the General Conditions, Contractor shall install temporary precast concrete barrier rail between any lane carrying public traffic and any excavation, obstacle or storage area when the following conditions exist:

Excavations: Any excavation, the near edge of which is 12 feet or less from the edge of the lane, except;

- (a) Excavations covered with sheet steel or concrete covers of adequate thickness to prevent accidental entry by traffic or the public.
- (b) Excavations less than one foot deep.
- (c) Trenches less than one foot wide for irrigation pipe or electrical conduit or excavations less than one foot in diameter.
- (d) Excavations parallel to the lane for the purpose of pavement widening or reconstruction.
- (e) Excavations in side slopes where the slope is steeper than 4:1.
- (f) Excavations protected by existing barrier or railing.

At the end of each working day, if a difference of 0.50 feet exists between the elevation of the existing pavement and the elevation of any excavation within 2 feet of the traveled way, material shall be placed and compacted against the vertical cuts adjacent to the traveled way. During excavation operations, native material may be used for this purpose, however, once the placing of the structural section commences, structural material shall be used. The material shall be placed to the level of the elevation of the top of the existing pavement and tapered at a slope of 4:1 or flatter to the bottom of the excavation. Treated base shall not be used for the taper. Full compensation for placing the material on a 4:1 slope, regardless of the number of times it is required, and subsequent removing or reshaping of the material to the lines and grades shown on the plans shall be considered as included in the cost for other contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

Personal vehicles of Contractor's employees shall not be parked on the traveled way or shoulders, including any section closed to public traffic. Whenever vehicles or equipment are parked on the shoulder within 6 feet of a traffic lane, the shoulder area shall be closed with traffic cones or portable delineators placed on a taper in advance of the parked vehicles or equipment and along the edge of the pavement at 25 foot intervals to a point not less than 25 feet past the last vehicle or piece of equipment.

A minimum of one paved traffic lane, not less than 12 feet wide, shall be open for use by public traffic in each direction of travel. The full width of the traveled way shall be open for use by public traffic on Saturdays, Sundays and designated legal holidays, after 4:00 p.m. on Fridays and the day preceding designated legal holidays and when construction operations are not actively in progress.

5.10 SOUND CONTROL REQUIREMENTS:

Sound control shall be in accordance with Section 7 1.01I, "Sound Control Requirements," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

The noise level from Contractor's operations, between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., shall not exceed 86 dba at a distance of 50 feet. This requirement in no way relieves Contractor from responsibility for complying with local ordinances regulating noise level.

Said noise level requirements shall apply to all equipment on the job or related to the job, including but not limited to trucks, transit mixers or transient equipment that may or may not be owned by Contractor. The use of loud sound signals shall be avoided in favor of light warnings except those required by safety law for the protection of personnel.

Full compensation for conforming to the requirements of this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

5.11 WORKING HOURS:

Contractor's working hours shall be between 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding legal holidays.

Contractor shall notify Engineer 48 hours prior to beginning work.

Contractor shall not work outside the above-mentioned working hours without prior written consent of Engineer.

Designated legal holidays are: January 1st, the third Monday in January, the third Monday in February, the last Monday in May, July 4th, the first Monday in September, November 11th, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving, and December 25th. When a designated legal holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be a designated legal holiday. When a designated legal holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be a designated legal holiday.

5.12 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT REQUIREMENTS:

Contractor shall contact Underground Service Alert of Northern California at least 48 hours in advance of any construction activity, will or could damage or affect any underground utility or subsurface improvement, and obtain an inquiry identification number. Contractor shall notify Underground Service Alert in the event of change in the project limits or change in original work previously shown on the plans or indicated in the specifications. Contractor shall not commence construction prior to City Inspector receiving City's notice from USA North regarding this construction activity.

5.13 DUST CONTROL:

Dust Control shall conform to the provisions in Section 10, "Dust Control", of the Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

Full compensation for Dust Control will be considered as included in the various contract items of work requiring Dust Control, as determined by Engineer, and no separate payment will be made therefor.

5.14 WATERING:

Watering shall be in accordance with Section 17, "Watering," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.

Full compensation for Watering will be considered as included in the various contract items of work requiring Watering, as determined by Engineer, and no separate payment will be made therefor.

5.15 USE OF HYDRANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES:

City will permit the use of a hydrant for construction purposes provided that the following are abided by:

- 1. A spanner wrench shall be the only type of wrench used on fire hydrants.
- 2. Contractor shall be liable for the damages to or loss of all hydrants and associated water lines and equipment which result from the use of this equipment.
- 3. Water shall only be used within City limits.

- 4. The vehicle must be approved by Engineer for approved backflow device.
- 5. Contractor shall pay a deposit on a water meter provided by the City. After the project ended the Contractor shall return the meter to the City for the release of the deposit.

However, use of city hydrants does not exempt Contractor from providing a water truck where hydrants cannot be utilized due to unsafe working conditions as deemed by Engineer.

5.16 **PROGRESS SCHEDULE:**

Contractor shall furnish City with a Critical Path Method progress schedule. The progress schedule shall show the construction activities extending for the duration of the working days. Any deviation from the outline must be approved by Engineer. Contractor shall not be allowed to start construction activities until the progress schedule is accepted by Engineer.

5.17 PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY:

The work performed in connection with various existing facilities shall be in accordance with Section 7-8, "Preservation of Property," of the Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

Due care shall be exercised to avoid injury or damage to existing improvements or facilities, utility facilities, adjacent property, and roadside trees, shrubs and other plants that are to remain in place.

Roadside trees, shrubs and other plants that are not to be removed and pole lines, fences, signs, markers and monuments, buildings and structures, conduits, pipelines under or above aground, sewer and water lines, sprinkler systems above or below ground, all roadway facilities, and any other improvements or facilities within or adjacent to the right-of-way shall be protected from injury or damage, and if ordered by Engineer, Contractor shall provide and install suitable safeguards, approved by Engineer, to protect such objects from injury or damage. If such objects are injured or damaged by reason of Contractor's operations they shall be replaced or restored at Contractor's expense. The facilities shall be replaced or restored to a condition as good or better as when Contractor entered upon the work, or as good as required by the specifications accompanying the contract, if any such objects are a part of the work being performed under the contract. Engineer may make or cause to be made such temporary repairs as necessary to restore to service any damaged facility. The cost of such repairs shall be borne by Contractor and may be deducted from any moneys due or to become due to Contractor under the contract.

The fact that any underground facility is not shown upon the plans shall not relieve Contractor of his responsibility under Section 2.02, "Existing Utilities and Facilities", of these provisions. It shall be Contractor's responsibility, pursuant thereto, to ascertain the location of such underground improvements or facilities that may be subject to damage by reason of his operations.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in protecting or repairing property as specified above, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

5.18 ORDER OF WORK:

Order or work shall be in accordance with the provisions in Section 5-1.05, "Order of Work," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

5.19 AS-BUILTS:

When the job is complete, Contractor shall provide City with as-built drawings. These as-built drawings shall show any and all differences (revisions, additions, etc.) between the signed improvement plans and the installed improvements. The Contractor shall identify all utilities that are located in the field. The as-builts will consist of redlined signed improvement plans. The NOC will not be issued until acceptable as-builts have been received by the Engineer.

5.20 SURVEYING:

Construction survey staking shall be provided by City. Contractor shall provide a staking request no less than 1 week prior to Contractor starting work and not less than 48 hours before the staking is required to continue construction. The Contactor shall provide unimpeded access to the site and allow City survey crew to perform their work.

Contractor shall protect all survey stakes and markers during construction. If survey stakes and/or markers are damaged or destroyed during the course of construction, by vandalism or by any other means, Contractor may submit a request to have the survey re-staked. If re-staking is required, Contractor shall be back charged at the fully burdened hourly rate for the survey crew and shall fully reimburse City for all necessary materials and equipment.

5.21 TESTING:

Unless otherwise noted, City of Turlock will supply all acceptance testing. Coordination of said testing is the responsibility of Contractor through the project's inspector. The Contractor shall provide at least 24 hours' notice to the Engineer in advance of needing acceptance testing. If the Contractor request testing and the Contractor is not ready for the testing to occur, the Contractor shall be back charged the cover the cost of the testing firm.

At sites chosen by the project inspector, City's testing laboratory will conduct all tests. Contractor shall supply any necessary equipment and or labor required to obtain all samples for the completion of the testing process.

City of Turlock shall compensate the testing laboratory for all initial tests. Secondary and all other follow-up tests required due to failure of initial testing shall be reimbursed to City of Turlock based on the following schedule:

Water sample test: \$300.00 Per Test Compaction test: \$100.00 Per Test

5.22 SUBMITTALS:

General submittals shall be made in accordance with Section 5.25, "Internet Based Construction Management System," of these special provisions. If a physical copy of a submittal is required, the following shall apply.

Before making submittals, Contractor shall ensure that products and materials will be available in the quantities and in the time required by the Contract and the approved outline of construction activity. Each submittal shall clearly identify, by highlighting, arrows or other defined and permanent mark, the products and materials proposed for use.

All Submittals shall be made to Engineer by Contractor, including those generated by subcontractors and suppliers. Contractor shall carefully review all subcontractor and supplier submittals before submitting to Engineer for review. Submittals received from sources other than Contractor's office shall be returned without

action. If a submittal contains extraneous information, unmarked options or is incomplete, it will be returned to Contractor for correction and require re-submittal.

Submittals will be processed by Engineer within ten (10) working days after receipt from Contractor. Engineer will review submittals for general conformance with the Contract Documents and standards. Such review by Engineer shall not relieve Contractor or any subcontractor of any responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents. Unless specifically authorized to do so by Engineer, Contractor shall not procure, manufacture, or fabricate any part of the contract work until submittals related to said contract work have been favorably reviewed by Engineer.

Contractor shall deliver five copies of each submittal to Engineer. Each submittal shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

1. Title page including the following information:

Project Number and Name. Name of Contractor. Name of subcontractor (if applicable). Description of item. Item Number on Bid Schedule. Date of Submittal. Contractor's initials and date indicating approval of item for submittal to Engineer.

2. Index Sheet (For submittals containing information on multiple components. Each component shall be cross-identified with reference to a divider tab number).

3. Divider Tabs (For submittals containing information on multiple components. Tab numbers shall correspond to the index sheet for each component in the submittal).

4. The brochure, product data sheet or catalog cut (For each component in the submittal, separated by their respective divider tabs).

5. For shop drawings, Contractor shall submit five (5) clean, low background reproducible prints. Shop drawings larger than $11 \ge 17$ in. shall be rolled, not folded.

6. Submittals that involve engineering computations or original design work shall show the name, the California State registration number, seal, and signature of the Professional Engineer certifying that such computations or design work are correct and in conformance with applicable standards, codes and accepted engineering practices.

7. For product samples, Contractor shall submit two (2) representative samples, one of which may be retained for the duration of the project or indefinitely at the discretion of Engineer. Although a reasonable attempt will be made to maintain the samples in good condition, neither City nor its representative will be responsible for the condition of the samples if returned to Contractor.

8. For material samples, unless a specific quantity is called for in the contract documents, Contractor shall submit a representative sample of the material, which may be retained for the duration of the project or indefinitely at the discretion of Engineer.

9. Certificates of compliance shall be submitted by Contractor to Engineer for those materials and products for which no sample and test results are specified. Certificates of compliance shall include the following information:

Statement that the product complies with the respective contract specifications.

Producer's name and address, product trade name and catalog number (if applicable), place of product origin, quantity of product to be furnished, and related contract plans and specification section numbers.

A certified copy of test results pertaining to the product from a certified independent testing laboratory. At the option of Engineer certified test results shall be signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed to practice in the state of California.

Contractor shall submit Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for all materials used or stored on the site that possess a MSDS, including materials used by Contractor for maintenance of equipment.

5.23 NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CLAIM:

Attention is directed to Section 5-1.43 "Potential Claims and Dispute Resolution," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.

5.24 PRESERVATION OF EXISTING MONUMENTS:

Preservation of existing monuments shall be Contractor's responsibility. Contractor shall notify Engineer of all monuments that may/will be disturbed by construction operations. Engineer will tie off said monuments and provide Contractor a notice to proceed.

Once Contractor is finished with its construction operations, Engineer will relocate the monuments. Contractor shall install a monument will with concrete collar at each location which shall conform to the provisions in Section 22-1 "Survey Monuments" and Drawing M-1 "Monument Detail", of the Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved with protecting existing monuments as specified above, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

5.25 INTERNET BASED CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM:

General

The Engineer and Contractor shall utilize Virtual Project Manager (http://www.virtual-pm.com/), herein after called VPM, for submission of all data and documents (unless specified otherwise in this Section) throughout the duration of the Contract. VPM is an electronic project management system accessible through the Internet used to create, share, and review construction management documentation. VPM is provided by the Engineer at no cost to the Contractor. VPM will be made available to all Contractors' personnel, subcontractor personnel, suppliers, consultants, Engineer, and any of Engineer's representatives or agents. The joint use of this system is to facilitate electronic exchange of information, automation of key processes, electronic notification of project activity, and overall management of contract documentation. VPM shall be the primary means of project information submission and management.

The Engineer will establish the Contractor's access to VPM by enabling access and assigning user profiles to Contractor personnel, including subcontractors and suppliers, as requested by Contractor. All authorized personnel shall have an individual user profile; no joint-use or shared user profiles will be allowed. Each user profile shall be assigned to a user group and have specific permission settings and privileges based on the user's need within VPM. Entry of information exchanged and transferred between the Contractor and its subcontractors and suppliers on VPM shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

The Contractor shall use computer hardware and software that meets the requirements of the VPM system. As recommendations are modified by VPM, the Contractor will upgrade their system(s) to meet or exceed the recommendations. Upgrading of the Contractor's computer systems will not be justification for a cost or time modification to the Contract. The Contractor shall ensure its own connectivity to VPM through their internet service provider.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the validity of the information they place in VPM, for the training of their personnel to understand and utilize VPM, as well as the provision and accessibility of adequate resources to connect with VPM. Accepted users shall be knowledgeable in the use of computers, including Internet browsers, email programs, and the Portable Document Format (PDF) document type. The Contractor shall utilize the existing forms in VPM to the maximum extent possible. If a form does not exist in VPM the Contractor must include their own form or a form provided by the Engineer as an attachment to a submittal, RFI, or other document within VPM. Note that only the following file types are accepted as attachments to documents within VPM: PDF files, Microsoft Word (DOC) files, Microsoft Excel (XLS) files, picture files (JPG, TIFF, BMP, JPEG, etc.). PDF documents will be created through electronic conversion prior to uploading, such as through a "print to file" feature or "save as pdf" feature, rather than optically scanned whenever possible.

Contractor shall provide a list of key VPM personnel for the Engineer's acceptance. The list shall include the following information: first name, last name, address, title, office phone number, cell phone number, and email address. The Engineer is responsible for adding and removing users from the system and establishing read, write, and approval permission levels.

Company Documents

This area is reserved for general documentation not related to a specific project. Only the Engineer shall post content in this area. Examples of content found in this area are: the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and Drawings, the 2010 Caltrans Standard Specifications, and the 2010 Caltrans Standard Plans. All files are in PDF format.

Project Summary

The project summary tab provides an overall summary of the project. It includes the current weather, the working days remaining and a summary of work for the past week. The summary of work is generated from the City's project inspector and the daily logs. This tab is for information only and the Contractor shall not take any action here.

Task Manager

The project schedule the Contractor submits is converted into a format that is uploaded by the Engineer into the task manager tab. The Contractor is responsible for providing schedule updates to the Engineer whenever the work progress in a manner different than the approved schedule.

Change Order Manager

The change order manager tab shall be used to track project change orders. Any potential change orders shall be tracked as a Request for Information (RFI) in the RFI tab. Once the Engineer agrees that a RFI will result in a contract change order, a new contract change order shall be created by the Engineer in the change order manager tab. The Engineer will finalize the contract change order through this tab. Once the change order is finalized, the Engineer will present the contract change order at a City Council meeting. After City Council approval the Engineer will make payment on the contract change order.

<u>Transmittals</u>

The transmittal tab shall be used to communicate general project information amongst all parties as well as used by the Contractor in the submission of certified payroll reports. The Engineer will upload the project-specific information including: bid documents, conformed plans, conformed specifications and the Notice to Proceed to the transmittal tab.

The Contractor shall submit certified payroll reports on a weekly basis through the transmittal tab. Each week shall have a separate transmittal where all the certified payroll reports and statements of non-performance for each contractor shall be posted.

<u>Submittals</u>

All submittals shall be submitted through the submittal tab. The preferred document type is PDF.

Before making submittals, the Contractor shall ensure that products and materials will be available in the quantities and in the time required by the Contract and the approved schedule of activities. Each submittal shall be legible and clearly identify, by highlighting, arrows or other defined and permanent mark, the products and materials proposed for use.

All submittals shall be generated from the prime contractor and any submittals that are uploaded by subcontractors or suppliers will not be reviewed. Contractor shall carefully review all subcontractor and suppliers submittals before submitting it to the Engineer for review. If a submittal contains extraneous information, unmarked options or is otherwise incomplete, it will be rejected and the Contractor shall make corrections and upload the resubmittal. Any resubmittal shall be made to the same transmittal item in VPM.

Submittals shall be processed by the Engineer within ten working days after upload to VPM. The Engineer will review submittals for general conformance with the Contract Documents and standards. Such review by the Engineer shall not relieve the Contractor of any responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents. Unless specifically authorized to do so by the Engineer, the Contractor shall not procure, manufacture, or fabricate any part of the contract work until submittals related to said contract work have been approved by the Engineer.

Each submittal shall have a unique title that is comprised of the item followed by a comma and the section of the specifications that reference the item (e.g. Minor Concrete, Section 8.01). The submittal type shall either be project materials or project information. The submittal description shall be used to identify any pertinent information or list a description of the item being submitted.

Certificates of compliance shall be submitted through the submittal tab. The submittal type shall be "certificate of compliance".

The Contractor shall submit progress invoices on the last working day of the month through the transmittal tab (select "progress invoice" for the type). The Engineer will review the submitted content and if found acceptable

the Engineer will upload an official invoice for the Contractor to sign. The Contractor shall sign in blue ink and upload the signed invoice to the same transmittal where the Engineer will then process for payment.

<u>RFIs</u>

The RFI tab shall be used to request information from the Contractor to the Engineer. The Contractor shall create a RFI upon recognition of any event or question of fact arising from the contract work. The RFI type for this submittal shall be "Request for Information." The Engineer will also utilize the RFI tab in a similar manner when there is a question for the Contractor; this RFI type shall be "Response Required."

The Engineer will respond to a RFI submitted by the Contractor within five days. The Contractor shall proceed with the work unless otherwise ordered. The Contractor may protest the Engineer's response by submitting a claim in accordance with Section 5.23 "Notice of Potential Claim" of the special provisions.

If the Engineer states the RFI leads to a change in scope, change in conditions, differing site conditions or extra work; a contract change order will be issued.

Daily Logs

The daily log tab is used by the City to document the activities of the work, any correspondence or direction given in the field, safety concerns and general comments about the project. The Contractor may view the contents of this tab for reference purposes. The information entered into the daily log tab is used to populate the project summary tab.

WSWD

The weekly statement of working days will be posted to the WSWD tab. VPM automatically generates the WSWD from the information entered into the daily log tab. The WSWD shows the working days and nonworking days charged for the reporting week, any time adjustments, a work completion date with the remaining working days left in the contract and the controlling activities for the week.

The Contractor will be allowed 15 days from the last working day of the weekly statement to protest in writing the correctness of the statement. The Contractor shall submit a transmittal stating what is being protested and the reasons for protest. The Engineer will respond to the protest. The Contractor may protest the Engineer's response by submitting a claim in accordance with Section 5.23 "Notice of Potential Claim" of the special provisions.

SECTION 6 (BLANK) SECTION 7 (BLANK) SECTION 8 MATERIALS

8.01 MINOR CONCRETE:

Minor Concrete shall conform to the requirements of Section 90-2, "Minor Concrete," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.

SECTION 9 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

The work consists, in general of: earthwork and grading, install concrete, install arbor and foundation, install playground system, install park accessories including drinking fountain, barbecues, bicycle racks, benches and tables, waste receptacles, install water line, install security lighting, install dog pot, and other associated work.

The work includes all necessary labor, materials, tools, equipment and any incidentals needed to perform the improvements as shown on the contract plans.

BID ALTERNATES

There are two bid alternates considered with this project.

- 1) Alternate 1 is for all the work involved in installing the sewer line. A more detailed description of these bid items is in Section 10. This bid alternate installs the following:
 - 4" sewer line
 - Sewer cleanouts
 - Trenching, aggregate base, and hot mix asphalt
 - Removing and replacing improvements around existing drinking fountain
 - Connections to Existing Sewer Main
 - Curb, Gutter and sidewalk associated with the demolition/ trenching for sewer line
- 2) Alternate 2 is for all the work involved with installing a drinking fountain rock drain. The rock drain shall be:
 - Diameter 2 feet
 - Depth 4 feet
 - Rock Type 1¹/₂ inch smooth rock
 - Piping and materials to rock drain

SECTION 10 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

10.01 MOBILIZATION & DEMOBILIZATION

Mobilization is intended to compensate the Contractor for operations including, but not limited to, those necessary for the movement of personal, equipment, supplies and incidentals to / from the project site; for the payment of premium cost and insurance for the project; for any necessary costs of acquisition of equipment, including purchase and mobilization expense; and for any other work and operations which must be performed or costs that must be incurred incident to the initiation of meaningful work at the site and for which payment is not otherwise provided in the contract.

Payment for mobilization will be made at the contract lump sum price which will be limited to five percent of the total base bid price. Partial payments under this item will be made in accordance with the following provisions:

The first payment of the lump sum price for mobilization will be fifty percent of the contract lump sum price and will be paid with the first request provided that all submissions required are submitted by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

The second payment of the lump sum price for mobilization will be twenty five percent of the contract lump sum price and shall be included in the second pay request.

The third and final payment of the lump sum price for mobilization will be included in the final pay request.

10.02 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

Contractor shall complete and submit an Erosion Control and Sediment Plan worksheet prior to the Notice to Proceed being issued. Contractor shall implement BMP's before construction occurs and shall maintain BMP's in good working condition at all times.

The City of Turlock's Erosion Control and Sediment Plan worksheet can be found in Section 14.01.

The contract lump sum price paid for Erosion and Sediment Control shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved with Erosion and Sediment Control as specified above, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

10.03 CONSTRUCTION PROJECT SIGN

Contractor shall furnish and install 8'x 4' project sign as detailed in the project plans at locations within the project site as directed in the field. Project signs shall have a white background with black lettering, borders, graphics and lines. The Engineer shall provide all necessary funding information at the preconstruction meeting. The Contractor shall install project signs before performing any other work on the site. Contractor shall remove all project signs and fill postholes after all punch list items have been completed and signed off by the City Inspector.

The contract price paid for each construction project sign shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in constructing, installing and removing construction project signs, complete in place, as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.04 TEMPORARY FENCING

Contractor shall install temporary fencing around work site, as shown on the plans, for the duration of the project.

The lump sum price paid for Temporary Fencing shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in constructing Temporary Fencing, complete in place, as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.05 PRESERVATION OF EXISTING MONUMENTS

Preservation of existing monuments shall be Contractor's responsibility. Contractor shall notify Engineer of all monuments that may/will be disturbed by construction operations. Engineer will tie off said monuments and provide Contractor a notice to proceed.

10.06 REMOVE EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS

Concrete, asphalt concrete and all other items designated on the plans to be removed or must be removed in order to install the improvements as shown on the plans, shall be removed and disposed of outside the highway right of way in accordance with the provisions in Section 7-10 of the Standard Specifications. Saw-cut all concrete and asphalt materials surfaces prior to removal.

The lump sum price paid for removing existing improvements shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in removing the existing improvements as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.07 EARTHWORK AND GRADING

Earthwork shall conform to the provisions in Section 19, "Earthwork", of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

Surplus excavated material shall become the property of Contractor and shall be disposed of outside the rightof-way and shall conform to the provisions in Section 7-10, "Disposal of Materials Outside the Right of Way", of the Standard Specifications.

All import borrow shall be backfill material type "E" as described in Section 19-3.06 of the Caltrans Standard Specifications. All backfill material shall be compacted at 95% relative compaction for the entire depth of imported material. The minimum compacted section shall be six inches and shall be composed of import borrow, existing material, or a combination of both.

The contract lump sum price paid for earthwork shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in importing, excavating, hauling, compacting, and removing the earthwork as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.08 AGGREGATE BASE

Aggregate Base shall conform to the provisions in Section 26, "Aggregate Bases," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications. Aggregate base shall be ³/₄ inch maximum, class 2 aggregate base.

Contractor shall submit a certificate of compliance along with a 50 lb sample of the approved material.

Quantities of aggregate base to be paid by lump sum (theoretical maximum with no voids) shall be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by the Engineer.

The contract lump sum price paid for Aggregate Base shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in placing aggregate base, complete in place, as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer

10.09 HOT MIX ASPHALT

Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) shall conform to the provisions in Section 39, "Hot Mix Asphalt," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.

The HMA construction process shall be method. The aggregate gradation shall be $\frac{1}{2}$ " and the HMA type shall be type A. The binder shall be PG 64-10.

Section 39-1.12C "Profilograph" of the Caltrans Standard Specifications shall not apply.

Contractor shall tack coat all surfaces to receive HMA and shall conform to the Caltrans Standard Specifications Section 39, "Hot Mix Asphalt."

The contract lump sum price paid per HMA shall include full compensation for traffic control, furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in placing, compacting, and quality-control of hot mix asphalt as shown on the plans, as specified in Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.10 ADJUST FRAMES AND COVERS TO GRADE

Frames and covers of new and existing manholes, valve boxes, monuments, etc, shall be adjusted to grade and shall conform to the provisions in Section 12-12, "Adjusting Manhole Frames, Monuments and Valve Boxes", of the Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

The contract price paid per each for Adjusting Frames and Covers to Grade shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in Adjusting Frames and Covers to Grade, complete in place, as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.11 CONNECTIONS TO AND TAPPING OF EXISTING MAINS

All connections to and tapping of existing mains shall be done by the City. Contractor shall contact Engineer at least ten working days before any proposed tapping of or connection to an existing main. Contractor shall furnish all necessary parts and valves and the City shall make the connection. Contractor shall be responsible for all excavating, hauling, and compacting of material necessary.

All connections to City water mains larger than 2" will be required to have a temporary tap through an approved double check backflow assembly which is furnished and installed at the time of connection by the City. After the new main line has been tested and disinfected to the satisfaction of Engineer, utility crews will remove the temporary double check backflow assembly and make the permanent tie-in. Contractor shall be responsible for contacting U.S.A., excavation and back fill for the tie-in, and all traffic safety.

Quantities of Connections to and Tapping of Existing Mains to be paid for by each and will be calculated on the basis of the quantities shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid for each Connecting to and Tapping of Existing Mains shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in Connecting to and Tapping of Existing Mains as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.12 SANITARY SEWER PIPE

Contractor shall install sanitary sewer pipe in accordance with the Standard Specifications and Drawings, the project plans and these special provisions. Pipe material shall be 4" PVC SDR-26. Contractor shall trench in accordance with Standard Drawing T-2.

Quantities of Sanitary Sewer Pipe to be paid for on the linear foot shall be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans, in the horizontal plane, and adjusted by the amount of change order by the Engineer. Specifically included in the measurement and payment of Sanitary Sewer Pipe is the trenching, excavation and replacement of any improvements that are disturbed due to the installation of the pipe.

The contract price paid per linear foot for Sanitary Sewer Pipe shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in constructing the

Sanitary Sewer Pipe, complete in place, as shown on the plans, and as required by law, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.13 WATER MAIN PIPE

Water Main Pipe shall conform to the provisions in Section 15, "Water Systems", of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

PVC pipe shall conform to AWWA C900 or C905 for all pipe, except that diameters larger than 12" shall be C905.

Chlorination shall conform to the provisions in Section 15-22, "Chlorination and Isolation of New Mains", of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

City of Turlock's water system is comprised of well water only. There is not a chlorine residual present in the system. Contractor shall exercise due care at all times so as to not contaminate the system.

Quantities of Water Main Pipe to be paid for by the linear foot will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per linear foot for Water Main Pipe shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in laying and constructing Water Main Pipe, including all trenching, backfill and aggregate base material, complete in place, as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

Specifically included in the payment of the Water Main Pipe is Chlorination as required by the standard specifications.

10.14 MINOR CONCRETE (SIDEWALK)

Material for minor concrete shall conform to Section 8.01 "Minor Concrete," of these special provisions.

Contractor shall submit a certificate of compliance for all minor concrete.

Lines, grades, dimensions and general construction of curb & gutter and sidewalk shall conform to the City of Turlock Standard Drawings.

Quantities of Minor Concrete (Sidewalk) to be paid for by the square foot will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per square foot for Minor Concrete (Sidewalk) shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material (including adhesive, or reinforcing steel and dowels for anchoring, and expansion joint material), tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in constructing Minor Concrete, complete in place, as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.15 MINOR CONCRETE (CURB AND GUTTER)

Material for minor concrete shall conform to Section 8.01 "Minor Concrete," of these special provisions.

Contractor shall submit a certificate of compliance for all minor concrete.

Lines, grades, dimensions and general construction of curb & gutter, retaining curb, and sidewalk shall conform to the City of Turlock Standard Drawings.

Quantities of Minor Concrete (Curb and Gutter) to be paid for by the linear foot will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per linear foot for Minor Concrete (Curb and Gutter) shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material (including adhesive, or reinforcing steel and dowels for anchoring, and expansion joint material), tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in constructing Minor Concrete, complete in place, as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.16 MINOR CONCRETE (PLAYGROUND RETAINING WALL)

Material for minor concrete shall conform to Section 8.01 "Minor Concrete" of these special provisions.

Contractor shall submit a certificate of compliance for all minor concrete.

Lines, grades, dimensions and general construction of Playground Curb shall conform to the Standard Specifications and Drawings, "Retaining Wall" on approved plans. Expansion joints shall be placed every 50 linear feet.

Quantities of Minor Concrete (Playground Retaining Wall) to be paid for by the linear foot will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per linear foot for Minor Concrete (Playground Retaining Wall) shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in constructing the vertical curb, complete in place, as shown on the plans, and as required by law, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.17 MINOR CONCRETE (ACCESS RAMP)

Contractor shall construct access ramps as located on the plans and in accordance with Section 13 of the Standard Specifications.

Quantities of Access Ramp to be paid for by the each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The items measured in the access ramp are all of the concrete including sidewalk, raised curb and all sloping to make ramp accessible.

The contract price paid per each for Access Ramp shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in constructing Access Ramps, complete in place, as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.18 ARBOR AND FOUNDATION

Contractor to furnish and install Arbor per manufacturer's specifications. Specifically included in the lump sum price is the concrete foundation.

Arbor shall be Classic Recreations Mesa Model size 20' by 30', or approved equal.

The contract lump sum price paid for Arbor shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in importing, excavating, hauling, compacting, and removing the earthwork as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.19 PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT

Contractor to furnish and install the Playground Equipment per manufacturer's specifications. Contractor shall contact Tammie Ward at Miracle Play Systems at (510) 893-2163 for questions regarding the playground equipment.

Contractor shall furnish and install the following items:

	and instan the following items:		
Part Number	Description	Qty	Weight
2990	SWG PART TOT SEAT 360 DEG W/CHAIN (8' TR)	2	15.00
446MS	X-CAVATOR, SEATED	1	50.00
4482	CAMEL BACK CLIMBER, DOUBLE	1	275.00
714260	KIDS' CHOICE PLAYHOUSE	1	795.00
7145019	TRIANGLE DECK (ATTACHES TO 3 POSTS)	3	75.00
7145049	1/2 HEX OPEN DECK (ATTACHES TO 5 POSTS)	1	155.00
714552	5" OD X 136" POST (3' TO 5' DECKS)	1	75.00
714555	5" OD X 76" POST FOR FENCING & PANELS	6	50.00
714573	5" OD X 168" POST FOR ROOF (3'6"-5' DECK)	6	100.00
71460213B	STEEL COUNTER PANEL (BELOW DECK)	1	60.00
714633	HOW TALL RU PANEL (POST MOUNT)	1	10.00
7146385U	GROOVE II SLIDE VORTEX (5' DECK)	1	200.00
71471513HB	CALYPSO 2 DRUM 1/2 PANEL (BELOW DECK)	1	65.00
7147151B	ALPHABET PANEL (BELOW DECK)	1	65.00
7147154B	CALCULATOR PANEL (BELOW DECK)	1	65.00
7147342	SAFETY PANEL AGES 2-12, FREE STANDING	1	60.00
7147352S	5" OD SINGLE POST SWG FRAME W/2 S/P SEATS	1	185.00
7147352X	BAY EXTENSION FOR 5" OD SGL POST SWG	1	145.00
	FRAME		
71474849U	6'2" TYP II SLIDE 360 DEG DOMED WAVE (4' DK)	1	1,500.00
71475734	SLOPED CLIMBING WALL 45 DEG (3' & 4' DECK)	1	200.00
714760B	MAGIC BALL POPPER PANEL (BELOW DECK)	1	80.00
7147631B	CRITTER PUZZLE PANEL (BELOW DECK)	1	50.00
714782	CRUNCH STATION	1	5.00
714796P1	BELL (POST MOUNT)	1	10.00
714812	12" RISER PLATE	1	20.00
714815	VERTICAL LADDER CLIMBER (5' DECK)	1	100.00
7148172B	BENCH PANEL (BELOW DECK)	1	50.00
71485149	SQUARE TRANSFER POINT W/CLOSED HR (4'	1	285.00
	DECK)		
7148626	ROOF FOR HEXAGON DECK, PERF STEEL	1	540.00
7149754B	XYLOPHONE PANEL (BELOW DECK)	1	35.00
71499269	KIDS' PERCH W/WHEEL	1	125.00
714994	FUN FONE PAIR (2 FONES)	2	75.00
960	LUCKY THE LADYBUG "C" SPRING RIDER	1	245.00
962	HOPPY THE GRASSHOPPER "C" SPRING RIDER	1	225.00

Specifically included in the lump sum price paid for Playground Equipment is the Engineered Wood Fiber (EWF). The Engineered Wood Fiber shall be certified by the International Play Equipment Manufacturers Association (IPEMA) for impact attenuation (ASTM F1292), be free of nails, staples, and other foreign metals and hazardous chemicals. EWF shall meet ASTM F2075 and ASTM F1951.

Contractor shall install a weed barrier fabric between native soil and Engineered Wood Fiber. Fabric shall be permeable, commercial grade, and have a 25 year warranty.

Contractor shall install rubber mats under the swing set. Rubber mat shall be non-toxic, commercial grade, shock absorbing, anti-fatigue, contain beveled edges, size shall be 3' x 3' x 2", and be black in color. The rubber mat shall be installed to prevent trenching under the swing.

The contract lump sum price paid for Playground Equipment shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in importing, excavating, hauling, compacting, and removing the earthwork as shown on the plans, specified in the standard specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by Engineer.

10.20 WASTE RECEPTACLE WITH DRAIN & CITY LOGO

Contractor shall provide and place Waste Receptacle with Drain & City Logo as shown on the project plans.

PRODUCT SPECIFICATION

Materials/Design Mix: One piece pre-cast concrete; 8.5 sacks Portland cement per yard with maximum rock size of ³/₄" reinforced with #4 and #5 rebar grid; cured concrete shall attain minimum compressive strength of 7,000 psi; minimum thickness of all areas to be 4 inches

Color: Sequoia Sand (Tan) - mineral oxides mixed integrally with the cement

Dimensions: 30³/₄" Outside Diameter at top and 34" Tall

Weight: 950 lbs.

Features: 30 gallon capacity; drain holes; bag hooks; City logo cast into concrete surface; rounded edges; 14 gauge powder coated steel lid; graffiti resistant sealer

Quantities of Waste Receptacle with Drain & City Logo to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Waste Receptacle with Drain & City Logo shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in Waste Receptacle with Drain & City Logo, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.21 CONTOUR BENCH WITH CITY LOGO

Contractor shall furnish and install a Contour Bench as shown on the project plans and as described herein.

Concrete foundations shall be included in the cost of minor concrete.

BENCH SPECIFICATIONS:

Dimensions: 84" x 36" x 25½" Color: Sequoia Sand (Tan) - mineral oxides mixed integrally with the cement Features: Contoured support; center armrest; thru drain; anti-skate bumps; rounded edges; City logo cast in bench; graffiti resistant sealer

Quantities of Contour Bench with City Logo to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Contour Bench With City Logo shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install Contour Bench, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.22 DOG BONE BENCH

Contractor shall furnish and install a Dog Bone Bench as shown on the project plans and as described herein.

Concrete foundations shall be included in the cost of minor concrete.

BENCH SPECIFICATIONS: Dimensions: 76¹/₂" x 23" x 20" Weight: 2300 lbs. Color: Natural with Standard Acrylic Sealer

Quantities of Dog Bone Bench to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Dog Bone Bench shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install Contour Bench, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.23 WATER FOUNTAIN WITH DRAIN & CITY LOGO

Contractor shall furnish and install the water fountain as shown on the project plans and as described herein. Water fountains shall comply with all state and federal regulations including being ADA accessible and complying with the Safe Drinking Water Act. Water fountains shall contain recessed hose bibb and lock door.

Concrete foundations shall be included in the cost of minor concrete.

BOTTLE	FILL	FOUNTAIN	SPECIFICATIONS:
DOILED	1100	I Convirint,	or Don ron ron or to.

-			
Pedestal:	One piece weld construction with MDF standard 3/16" wall thickness		
Receptor Bowl	: 18 gauge electro-polished stainless steel bowl		
Bubbler Head:	Anti-squirt head mounted with a lock nut and washer to prevent tampering		
Push Bar:	304 stainless steel, mushroom style		
Control Valve:	e: Require less than 5 pounds to operate		
Water Supply:	Maintenance free reinforced nylobraid tubing that is NSF-61 certified, 1/2" MIP threaded inlets		
	with stainless steel strainer		
Drain:	1 ¹ / ₂ " schedule 40 PVC pipe		
Finish:	Green powder coat		
Warranty:	Minimum one year		
Installation:	Surface mount		

Features: Center bottle fill station with two drinking stations

Quantities of Water Fountain to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Water Fountain shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install Water Fountain, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.24 BIKE RACK

Contractor shall furnish and install the Bike Rack as shown on the project plans and as described herein.

Concrete foundations shall be included in the cost of minor concrete.

BIKE RACK SPECIFICATIONS:

211121	
Parking:	Two bike locking type
Style:	Single bollard with two loops
Material:	Durable steel fabrication: $4\frac{1}{2}$ " OD x 10 gauge wall central post, $1\frac{1}{2}$ " OD steel tube bike loops,
	and $\frac{1}{4}$ x 8" base plate. All welded fabrication.
Installation:	Surface mount
Dimensions:	35" tall, 28¼" wide (Minimum)
Finish:	Green powder coat

Quantities of Bike Rack to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Bike Rack shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install Bike Rack, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.25 CHARCOAL BARBECUE GRILL

Contractor shall furnish and install the Charcoal Barbecue Grill as shown on the project plans and as described herein.

Concrete foundations shall be included in the cost of minor concrete.

CHARCOAL BARBECUE SPECIFICATIONS:

Installation:Surface mountCooking Area:384 square inchesFinish:Black

Quantities of Charcoal Barbecue Grill to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Charcoal Barbecue Grill shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install

Charcoal Barbecue Grill, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.26 SERVING TABLE

Contractor shall furnish and install the Serving Table as shown on the project plans and as described herein.

Concrete foundations shall be included in the cost of minor concrete.

SERVING TABLE SPECIFICATIONS:

Frame Finish:	Powder Coated Green
Material:	Recycled Plastic
Color:	Weathered Wood with U.V. stabilizer
Installation:	Surface mount
Dimensions:	8' long

Quantities of Serving Table to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Serving Table shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install Serving Table, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.27 PICNIC TABLE

Contractor shall furnish and install the Picnic Table as shown on the project plans and as described herein.

Concrete foundations shall be included in the cost of minor concrete.

PICNINC TABLE SPECIFICATIONS:		
Dimensions:	92" x 65" x 32"	
Weight:	2,450 lbs	
Features:	Anti-Skate Deterrents	
Finish:	Tan	

Quantities of Picnic Table to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Picnic Table shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install Picnic Table, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.28 PET STATION WITH WASTE RECEPTACLE

Contractor shall furnish and install the Pet Station with Waste Receptacle as shown on the project plans and as described herein.

Concrete foundations shall be included in the cost of minor concrete.

PET STATION WITH WASTE RECEPTACLE:

Sign Material: Aluminum reflective sign indicating pet waste area
Dispenser: Aluminum bag dispenser
Pole: Galvanized 8 foot post
Trash Can: 16 gauge steel; 10 gallon; powder coated green; 23" tall, 11½" diameter
Trash Bags: 50 liner bags per box
Pet waste bags: 200 bags per roll; perforated bag separation; 8" wide, 13" tall; opaque green
Features: Lock with keys; replacement parts, includes 400 pet waste bags and box of trash bags

Quantities of Pet Station with Waste Receptacle to be paid per each will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The contract price paid per each for Pet Station with Waste Receptacle shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install Pet Station with Waste Receptacle, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.29 PLAYGROUND ROCK DRAIN

Contractor shall furnish and install the Playground Rock Drain as shown on the project plans and as described herein.

PLAYGROUND ROCK DRAIN SPECIFICATIONS:

Dimensions:3' diameter, 10' deepRock Type:1½" smooth rock

Quantities of Playground Rock Drain to be paid by lump sum will be calculated on the basis of the dimensions shown on the plans adjusted by the amount of any change ordered by Engineer.

The lump sum contract price paid for the Playground Rock Drain shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved to furnish and install Playground Rock Drain, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

10.30 FINAL CLEANUP

Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall remove all equipment, debris, and shall leave the site in a neat clean condition to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Contractor shall clean the area of all construction related materials and sweep the entire project area including sidewalk and gutter thoroughly. All construction signs, cones, barricades, and conflicting markings shall be removed. At the request of the Contractor, a final punchlist will be provided. After all items of the punchlist have been completed to the satisfaction of the Engineer, the Engineer will issue substantial completion. The accrual of working days will cease after substantial completion has been issued.

SECTION 11 BLANK

SECTION 12 WORK ZONE MOBILITY

POLICY:

To provide a smooth and efficient flow of traffic, while retaining safety through the roadway work zone.

12.01 PEDESTRIAN MANAGEMENT PLAN:

Contractor shall prepare and submit a Pedestrian Access Plan for approval.

12.02 TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN:

1. Temporary Traffic Control Plan

The Contractor shall develop and submit a temporary traffic control plan (TTCP) to the Engineer for review. The TTCP shall be prepared and signed by a person competent to perform said design. If the Engineer accepts the TTCP, the Contractor shall implement the TTCP.

The Contractor will be allowed to close lanes of traffic to accomplish the Work, provided that one lane in each direction is open to traffic. If the Work requires closure of lanes that would make it impossible to leave one lane in each direction open to traffic, the Contractor will be allowed to use flaggers and have one lane of traffic open. The Contractor will bear the entire cost of the flagging.

The Contractor will not be allowed to close the road to traffic at any point.

Contractor shall meet the requirements outlined in Section 11 of the City of Turlock Standard Specifications.

The Contractor shall bear the full cost of flagging operations.

The Contractor shall only be allowed to place traffic control devices for closures of lanes in areas where Work is occurring. If an area is not being worked on, the traffic control devices must not restrict traffic.

In times of low visibility (dark, foggy, etc.) the Contractor shall affix flashing beacons to all traffic control devices in a standard method.

If any component in the traffic control system is displaced, or ceases to operate or function as specified, from any cause, during the progress of the work, Contractor shall immediately repair said component to its original condition or replace said component and shall restore the component to its original location.

The cost of repairing or replacing said traffic control devices shall be the responsibility of Contractor. The cost of supplying any and all traffic control devices shall be considered as included in other contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

If the Contractor does not adhere to the accepted TTCP, the Engineer will shut down the Contractor for the remaining day and any subsequent days it take the Contractor to make traffic control devices adhere to the accepted TTCP. Such shut downs are not subject to additional working days.

SECTION 13 BLANK

SECTION 14 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN

Contractor shall prepare and submit an erosion control and sediment plan (ESCP). ESCP shall be prepared by a QSD. Submitted ESCP shall be reviewed and approved by the City before construction can begin.

14.01 ESCP WORKSHEET

The worksheet can be found on the following pages. Worksheet shall be completed by the Contractor.





EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN WORKSHEET

FOR

SMALL CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS



Serving the public interest in partnership with developers, homeowners, and contractors, in order to build a better community to ensure the safety, health and welfare of the citizens of Turlock. City of Turlock ESCP Worksheet for Small Projects *Rev. 6/12/2015*



What is this document for?

The City's Phase II MS4 NPDES General Permit issued by the State Water Board to the City, requires the City to develop and maintain a program to assure that sediment and other pollutants from construction activities do not flow into the City's storm water drainage system and, subsequently, impact local receiving waters. The City's Permit requires the City to require the owner of any construction project having soil disturbance to submit an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP). The ESCP must identify potential sources of erosion and sedimentation associated with the project and identify the control measures (best management practices or BMPs) used to prevent erosion and control sedimentation within the project. This document is a worksheet to assist owners of small projects to determine appropriate control measures for their project.

Who is required to complete this document?

All construction projects that have soil disturbance and pass through plan check or the City's permitting process must develop an ESCP. Projects having more than 1 acre of soil disturbance or those projects that are part of a larger common plan may be required to comply with the State Water Board's Construction General Permit (CGP), which requires the development of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). For these larger projects, the CGP-required SWPPP may be submitted in lieu of the ESCP. For all other projects (small projects) having less than 1 acre of soil disturbance or those that qualify for a waiver or exemption from the CGP, they must submit an ESCP using this worksheet.

What is required in this document?

This worksheet requires basic project and contact information, as well as, basic site information including location, status, approximate start and end dates and the area of soil disturbance.

The Best Management Practices (BMPs) that will be used during construction are also required to be identified.

A basic site map showing the project boundaries, adjacent streets, storm drain inlets, placement of BMPs, and where construction work will be occurring is required to be included. BMPs, as defined on the EPA's website, is "a term used to describe a type of water pollution control. Storm water BMPs are techniques, measures or structural controls used to manage the quantity and improve the quality of storm water runoff. The goal is to reduce or eliminate the contaminants collected by storm water as it moves into streams and rivers."

For more details on BMPs please visit the California Storm Water Quality Association's website at: www.casqa.org/resources/bmp-handbooks

or Caltrans's website at: www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/stormwater/manuals.htm



1 **Project Information**

Project Name:	
Project Address:	
Project Size:	
(Indicate sq. ft. or acres)	
Anticipated Construction	
Start Date:	
Anticipated Construction	
End Date:	
Approximate Soil	
Disturbance:	
(Indicate sq. ft or acres)	
Number of Storm Drain	
Inlets within 50 ft. of the soil	
disturbance.	

2 Owner Information

Name:	
Address:	
Phone Number:	
Email:	

3 Contractor Information

Name:	
Company Name:	
Address:	
Phone Number:	
Email:	



Run-on

4 Best Management Practices

4.1 Run-On Control BMPs

When surface flow of storm water runoff is allowed to pass through Sand bag diver	rsion
disturbed soils at an active construction project it can mobilize	*
sediment and carry it into the municipality's storm drainage system	
and into the local receiving waters. This results in deposition of	l I
sediment in the municipal drainage system which causes more frequent	
maintenance and can cause flooding. The sediment is also harmful to	
the local waterways.	

Does storm water have the potential to run-on to the construction site?	Yes No
If yes, will storm water surface flow be diverted around any disturbed soil areas? Show how it will be diverted on the site map.	Yes No

4.2 Erosion Control BMPs

The definition of erosion is the detachment of soil particles. These particles can become detached by rain, wind, or construction activity. Although construction, by nature, disturbs soil. It is vital to place a temporary or permanent covering over disturbed soil as soon as possible. Projects are not allowed to leave areas of exposed soil that do not have a cover. On the table below and on the site map show how you will prevent erosion at your project.

CASQA Fact Sheet	BMP Name	BMP Selected? (Check Box)	Describe the BMP to be implemented. If not used, state the reason why.
EC-1	Scheduling (work will be conducted during the dry season)		
EC-2	Preservation of Existing Vegetation (existing vegetated areas will not be disturbed)		
EC-4	Area to be vegetated with landscaping, turf, or hydroseeding		
EC-7	Temporary Erosion Control using an erosion control blanket or geotextile		
EC-6 & EC-8	Area covered with a temporary or permanent mulch including straw, wood, compost, hydromulch, or equivalent		
EC-16	Non-Vegetated Stabilization (covered with aggregate, paving, permanent structures / surfaces)		
WE-1	Wind Erosion Control (kept moist to prevent wind erosion)		



4.3 Temporary Sediment Control BMPs

Sediment control is accomplished by two ways. First, giving sediment every opportunity to settle our of storm water runoff while still on the project. Second, remove sediment from surfaces that has been carried or tracked off site before it enters the municipal drains. Each project must have effective perimeter sediment control. Drain inlets within 50 feet of the project must be protected. Any visible track out or sedimentation onto municipal property must be removed as soon as possible. On the

table below and on the site map show how you will control sediment at your project.

CASQA Fact Sheet	BMP Name	BMP Selected? (Check Box)	Describe the BMP to be implemented. If not used, state the reason why.
SE-1	Temporary Silt Fence		
SE-2 or SE-3	Sediment basin or trap (all or some of the storm water drains to a retention pond or basin where sediment can settle out)		
SE-5	Temporary Fiber Rolls / Straw Wattles		
SE-6 or SE - 8	Temporary Gravel Bag Berm or Sand Bag Barrier		
SE-7	Street Sweeping (inspect roads and sidewalks daily and sweep as necessary)		
MS4 Standard	Curb cutback (maintain a minimum of 4 inches of elevation difference between the disturbed soil and the top of the existing curb, sidewalk, or paved surface)		
SE-10	Temporary Drain Inlet Protection (mandatory for any DI's within 50 feet of the project)		
SE-13	Compost Socks / Biofilter Bags		
MS4 Standard	Stabilized Construction Exit – Constructed with aggregate at the project owner's specification, but it must be effective in controlling trackout.		
TC-2	Stabilized Construction Roadways		
WM-03	Stockpile Management (stockpiles that have not been actively used in the last 14 days must be covered with an erosion control blanket or plastic sheeting and contained with a fiber roll or gravel bag berm)		



4.4 Non-Storm Water Pollution Control BMPs

The City ordinances prohibit the discharge to its municipal drainage system of any wash water, unpermitted construction site dewatering, saw-cutting or grinding slurries, unpermitted hydrotest water, chlorinated swimming pool or fountain water, concrete or paint wash out, or spills of hazardous materials or other substances. On the table below, list any of the activities that may apply to your project; and on the site map show the location of these activities.

CASQA Fact Sheet	BMP Name	Activity Planned? (Yes/No)	Describe the BMP to be implemented. If not used, state the reason why.
NS-3	Paving, Sealing, Saw-cutting, Coring, and Grinding Operations		
NS-7	Potable Water / Irrigation Testing and Discharge to the Municipal Drainage System		
NS-8	Vehicle and Equipment Cleaning Performed on Site		
NS-9 & WM-04	Vehicle and Equipment Fueling Performed on Site		
NS-10	Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Performed on Site		
NS-12/13 & WM-08	Concrete, Stucco, Plaster, Tile, or Masonry Work		
WM-09	Temporary Sanitary Waste Facilities (port-a-potties)		
WM-01	Storage of Hazardous Materials on the Project Site (paints, solvents, acids, fuel, lubricants, etc.)		



5 Site Map (draw map below or attach another map)

	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++				
	++++++	+++++			+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++
	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++				
	++++++	+++++			+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++